
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2018 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM 
Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 
317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 

MISSION STATEMENT  
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 
 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 Duane Strawser, Mayor 
Reinette Senum, Council Member David Parker, Vice Mayor 
Evans Phelps, Council Member Valerie Moberg, Council Member 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 
each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 
local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 
advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  
Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 
City, CA during normal business hours. 

ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 
AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 
questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 
to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 
opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. 
IF YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those 
issues you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing. 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) the City Attorney Hal DeGraw is
requesting a closed session regarding significant exposure to litigation in one potential
case.

2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) a closed session is requested with
City Manager Catrina Olson and City Attorney Hal DeGraw on a personnel matter.

REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 

Roll Call:  Moberg, Phelps, Senum, Vice Mayor Parker, & Mayor Strawser 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   



PROCLAMATIONS:  “Thomas A. Coleman Day” – February 28th, 2018 

PRESENTATIONS:   

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address
the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter
jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.
Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for
certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda.

2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS:

3. CONSENT ITEMS:
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 
Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 
for separate discussion and action. 

A. Subject:  Notice Of Completion For 2017 Measure “S” Paving And Reconstruction Of 
Various Streets In Nevada City 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2018-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 
the construction of 2017 Measure “S” Paving and Reconstruction of Various Streets 
and authorize Mayor to sign. 

B. Subject:  Notice Of Completion For The Chamber Of Commerce Building Roof In 
Nevada City 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2018-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 
the replacement of the Chamber of Commerce Building Roof and authorize Mayor to 
sign. 

C. Subject:  Award Of Contract Change Order For Sewer Repairs At West Broad And 
Various Locations In Nevada City 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2018-XX awarding a contract change order to 
CME Services in the amount of $17,000 for Sewer Repairs at West Broad and 
Various Locations in Nevada City and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

4. APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES:
A. Strategic Planning Meeting – February 7, 2018
B. City Council Meeting – February 14, 2018



5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS:

A. Subject: 1st Quarter Financial Update, Fiscal Year (FY) 17/18
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

7. OLD BUSINESS:

A. Subject:  An Ordinance Of The City Of Nevada City Retitling And Amending
Section 9.22.110 Of Chapter 9.22 Of The Nevada City Municipal Code, Entitled 
‘Additional Requirements For Cultivation Facilities’ Relating To Medical Cannabis 
Dispensaries And Other Cannabis Businesses And Activity 
Recommendation:  Provide direction to staff on whether or not  bring back for a first 
reading the attached Ordinance No. 2018-XX retitling and amending Section 9.22.110 
of Chapter 9.22 of the Nevada City Municipal Code for the purpose of limiting 
cultivation sizes that may be permitted within city limits. 

B. Subject:  Review City Attorney Memorandum And Consider Drafting An 
Amendment To Nevada City Municipal Code Section 17.142.030 To Include 
Language That Addresses The Matter Of Proximity Of Cannabis Businesses To Day 
Care Centers And Youth Centers And Define Terms 
Recommendation:  Review City Attorney memorandum and provide direction to the 
City Manager and City Attorney to draft language regarding separation from day care 
centers and youth centers with a definition of these terms amending Nevada City 
Municipal Code section 17.142.030. 

8. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Subject: Consideration Of A Proposal By Owner Of National Hotel To Vacate 
National Alley As A Public Roadway 
Recommendation: In conformance with Section 65402 of the Government Code, City 
Council directs Planning Commission to review the application for vacation of National 
Alley and its conformance with the General Plan.   This shall include a public hearing, 
CEQA Environmental Assessment and a review of applicable policies, regulations and 
mitigation measures.  The Planning Commission shall provide recommendation to the 
City Council for vacation of the alley with conditions of approval within forty (40) days 
after the matter is submitted to it. 

B. Subject: LAFCo Review Of The Nevada City Sphere Of Influence (SOI) Update 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

C. Subject: Resolution Of Intent Of The City Of Nevada City To Annex Those Properties 
Already Served With City Sewer And Intervening Properties For Which City Services 
Are Readily Available: H.E.W. Property And Adjacent Properties; Cemetary 
Properties On Red Dog Road And Park Avenue Extension And Adjacent Properties; 



Caltrans Property And Adjacent Properties; And The Nevada County Juvenile Hall 
And Adjacent Properties 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 2018-XX of Intent to Annex those properties 
already served with City sewer and intervening/adjacent properties for which city 
services are readily available. 

D. Subject: Nevada City Three-Year Goals And Six-Month Strategic Objectives 
Recommendation: Review and approve City of Nevada City three-year goals and six-
month strategic objectives. 

9. CORRESPONDENCE:  Letters from the Community

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:

12. ADJOURNMENT

Certification of Posting of Agenda 
I, Loree’ McCay, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the February 
28, 2018 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted February 23rd, 2018 at the entrance of City 
Hall. The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 

Signed February 23rd, 2018 at Nevada City, California 

_________________________________ 
Loree’ McCay, Deputy City Clerk  

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
City Council 

Long Range Calendar 

March 14, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
March 28, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
March 30, 2018 Cesar Chavez Day Observed 
April 11, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
April 25, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 

NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 

NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 
remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 
impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 
while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/




REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
FEBRUARY 28, 2018      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Notice Of Completion For 2017 Measure “S” Paving And Reconstruction 
Of Various Streets In Nevada City 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2018-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 
the construction of 2017 Measure “S” Paving and Reconstruction of Various Streets and 
the authorize Mayor to sign. 

CONTACT:  Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  On August 23, 2017 the City Council awarded 
Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt the contract for the 2017 Paving and 
Reconstruction of Various Streets project.  This project consists of Measure “S” street 
improvements including grinding, reshaping, overlay of existing pavement, new 
pavement, drainage improvements, curb replacement and sidewalk improvements at 
various locations throughout the City.  Streets rehabilitated include Upper Park Avenue, 
South Pine Street, Sacramento Street, Mt Calvary Street, Cross Street and Jordan 
Street.  Staff is recommending the City Council pass a resolution approving a Notice of 
Completion for the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The project was funded by Measure “S” tax funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  
 
 Resolution 2018-XX Notice of Completion and Authorize Mayor to Sign 
 Notice of Completion  

file://FS-NEVCT/NEVCITY/CLERK/CITY%20COUNCIL%20MEETINGS/Agendas%202017/CC%20Agenda%2012.13.17/www.nevadacityca.gov


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-XX 

 
RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY  

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR 
2017 MEASURE “S” PAVING AND RECONSTRUCTION OF  

VARIOUS STREETS IN NEVADA CITY 
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City that 
the Mayor is authorized to sign a “Notice of Completion”, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and labeled “Exhibit A” which completes the construction of the 
2017 Measure “S” paving and reconstruction of various streets. 
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is authorized to file said “Notice 
of Completion” with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular scheduled meeting of the City Council 
held on the 28th day of February 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
           _____ 
       Duane Strawser, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 



                                                                                                       EXHIBIT A
RECORDING REQUESTED BY and
WHEN RECORDING MAIL TO:

DEPUTY CITY CLERK
CITY OF NEVADA CITY
317 Broad Street
Nevada City, CA  95959

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR DEPUTY CITY CLERK'S USE ONLY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1.  That the undersigned is OWNER or agent of the OWNER of the interest of estate stated below in the
      property hereinafter described.

2.  The FULL NAME of the OWNER is: City of Nevada City

3.  The FULL ADDRESS of the OWNER is:  317 Broad St, Nevada City, CA 95959

4.  The nature of the INTEREST or Estate of the undersigned is: FEE

5.  A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was COMPLETED: February 28, 2018

6.  The work of improvement completed is described as follows:  2017 Measure "S" Paving and Reconstruction  
of Various Streets  in the City of Nevada City.

7.  The NAME OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR, if any, for such work of improvement is:   
Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt

8.  The location of said project work is:  Various locations in Nevada City including Upper Park Avenue,
South Pine Street, Sacramento Street, Mt Calvary Street, Cross Street and Jordan Street.

9.  The property of which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of Nevada City, County of
Nevada, State of California and is described as follows:   Various Streets in Nevada City.

       City of Nevada City      
                 Owner

by: ___________________________________
        Duane Strawser, Mayor

   __________________________________________    ________________________________________
(Date and Place) (Signature)

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

"I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct."



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
FEBRUARY 28, 2018      www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Notice Of Completion For The Chamber Of Commerce Building Roof In 
Nevada City 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2018-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 
the replacement of the Chamber of Commerce Building Roof and authorize the Mayor to 
sign. 

CONTACT:  Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  On September 27, 2017 the City Council awarded 
Extreme Roofing the contract for the Chamber of Commerce Building Roof replacement 
project.  The project consists of replacement of the existing roof on the city owned 
Chamber of Commerce building located at 130/132 Main Street, Nevada City including 
but not limited to replacing the existing metal roof with a new metal roof. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The project was funded by the fiscal year 2017-2018 General Fund 
Buildings and Grounds budget for capital outlay. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  
 
 Resolution 2018-XX Notice of Completion and Authorize Mayor to Sign 
 Notice of Completion  

file://FS-NEVCT/NEVCITY/CLERK/CITY%20COUNCIL%20MEETINGS/Agendas%202017/CC%20Agenda%2012.13.17/www.nevadacityca.gov


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-XX 

 
RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY  

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BUILDING ROOF IN NEVADA CITY 

 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City that 
the Mayor is authorized to sign a “Notice of Completion”, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and labeled “Exhibit A” which completes the construction of the 
Chamber of Commerce Building Roof Replacement project. 
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is authorized to file said “Notice 
of Completion” with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular scheduled meeting of the City Council 
held on the 28th day of February 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
           _____ 
       Duane Strawser, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 



                                                                                                       EXHIBIT A
RECORDING REQUESTED BY and
WHEN RECORDING MAIL TO:

DEPUTY CITY CLERK
CITY OF NEVADA CITY
317 Broad Street
Nevada City, CA  95959

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR DEPUTY CITY CLERK'S USE ONLY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1.  That the undersigned is OWNER or agent of the OWNER of the interest of estate stated below in the
      property hereinafter described.

2.  The FULL NAME of the OWNER is: City of Nevada City

3.  The FULL ADDRESS of the OWNER is:  317 Broad St, Nevada City, CA 95959

4.  The nature of the INTEREST or Estate of the undersigned is: FEE

5.  A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was COMPLETED: February 28, 2018

6.  The work of improvement completed is described as follows: Chamber of Commerce Building Roof 
Replacement in Nevada City.

7.  The NAME OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR, if any, for such work of improvement is: Extreme Roofing

8.  The location of said project work is: Chamber of Commerce Building at 130/132 Main Street.

9.  The property of which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of Nevada City, County of
Nevada, State of California and is described as follows: 130/132 Main Street in Nevada City, CA.

       City of Nevada City      
                 Owner

by: ___________________________________
        Duane Strawser, Mayor

   __________________________________________    ________________________________________
(Date and Place) (Signature)

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

"I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct."



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    
        City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City, CA 95959 
February 28, 2018     www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
 
TITLE:  Award Of Contract Change Order For Sewer Repairs At West Broad 
And Various Locations In Nevada City  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass Resolution 2018-XX awarding a contract change 
order to CME Services in the amount of $17,000 for Sewer Repairs at West Broad 
and Various Locations in Nevada City and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The Contract for Sewer Repairs at West Broad 
and Various Locations was awarded by the City Council on April 12, 2017.  The 
project is currently under construction.  During construction it was determined that 
additional work is needed in two locations. 
 
1.) West Broad Street Sewer 
During replacement of sewer facilities it was determined that additional 100lf of 
sewer pipe replacement was necessary on West Broad Street.   The extra work 
involves replacement of damaged or deteriorated sections of water and sewer 
pipe.  The additional cost for the extra work is $14,000.  This cost was calculated 
at actual hours on Time and Materials basis in accordance with the contract 
requirements for additional work.    
 
2.)  West Broad Street Storm Drain 
Additional pipe replacement of existing storm drain was also identified by staff as 
being necessary prior to completion of sewer repair and trench patch paving in this 
area.  The extra work involves replacement of damaged or deteriorated sections 
of storm drain pipe.  The additional cost for extra work is $3,000. 
 
This additional work is necessary for continued service to residents in the City.   
The change order amount was reviewed by City staff and determined to be a fair 
and reasonable price for additional services using crews and personnel familiar 
with the project. 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project will be funded as follows: $14,000 
Sewer Fund and 3,000 Measure S Funds for Street Storm Drain Repair.   
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 Contract Change Order for Sewer Repairs at West Broad Street and 

Various Locations 
 Resolution 2018-XX 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Change Order Agreement No. 1_  
 
 THIS CHANGE ORDER AGREEMENT NO. 1 is made this _______________ day of 
______________________, between the CITY OF NEVADA CITY, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called 
"City," and CME SERVICES, hereinafter called "Contractor." 
  
 WHEREAS, City has caused to be prepared certain plans, specifications and other contract documents 
pertaining to the SEWER REPAIRS AT WEST BROAD AND VARIOUS LOCATIONS in said City: and 
  
 WHEREAS, after notice duly given, City has awarded the contract for such work to Contractor; 
  
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the original contract, if for any reason it becomes necessary or desirable to 
change the alignment, dimensions, or design of the work, the City shall have the right to issue written change orders 
therefore.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between said parties as follows: 
 
 1. Change Order Scope of Work.  The contractor agrees to furnish all labor, materials, tools and equipment, 
required to complete the additional work as described herein, in Nevada City, California, in accordance with the 
plans, specifications and other contract representation made in meetings.  All such work shall be performed in a 
good and workmanlike manner and to the satisfaction of the designer of said project. 
  
 1.) West Broad Street Sewer 

During replacement of sewer facilities it was determined that additional 100lf of sewer pipe replacement was 
necessary on West Broad Street.   The extra work involves replacement of damaged or deteriorated sections 
of water and sewer pipe.    The additional cost for extra work is $14,000.  This cost was calculated at actual 
hours on Time and Materials basis in accordance with the contract requirements for additional work.    

 
 2.)  West Broad Street Storm Drain 

Additional pipe replacement of existing storm drain was also identified by staff as being necessary prior to 
completion of sewer repair and trench patch paving in this area.    The extra work involves replacement of 
damaged or deteriorated sections of storm drain pipe.    The additional cost for extra work is $3,000. 

 
 2. Contract Price.  As consideration for all such work, City agrees to pay to Contractor the total sum of 
Seventeen Thousand 00/100 ($17,000.00) Dollars, payable in the manner hereinafter set forth. 
 
 3.  Extension of Time.  The Contractor shall commence the work and shall prosecute the same with due 
diligence until completion and acceptance by City; and the Contractor is entitled to an extension of fifteen (15) 
working days in addition to the original contract time of completion for all additional work associated with this 
change order. 
 
 Executed in duplicate this                     day of                         ,                . 
 
ATTEST:CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
 
                                         By:          
   (Mayor) 
 
   By:               
   (Contractor) 
 
 
   By:          
    (Authorized Officer) 
 



Project Specifications  
 

PROJECT LIMITS 

Various Locations, as shown on the plans. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project consists of water service line installation and water and sewer repairs at various locations as 
shown on the plans.   Methods of installation shall be selected by the contractor, however it is expected that 
there will be minimal or no disturbance of private home landscaping, fencing and hardscaping.     

TRAFFIC CONTOL 

When work is being performed, all streets shall have one lane of traffic available for alternating traffic.   At all 
times when work is not being performed, streets and driveways shall be safe for through traffic and 
pedestrians.   Lane closure shall comply with California Department of Transportation, "Manual of Traffic 
Controls for Construction and Maintenance Work Zones" current edition.   Notify Public Works Supt or City 
Engineer no fewer than two days in advance of proposed lane closure or driveway closure.   The contractor 
shall coordinate and verify with City staff that homeowners have been provided sufficient notice of any 
disruption of service including water, sewer or road access. 

CONSTRUCTION NOTES 

All improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the plans and details for the project and the latest 
edition of Caltrans Standard Plans and Standard Specifications and the Uniform Plumbing Code. 

MATERIAL NOTES 

SEWER LINE PIPE AND FITTINGS 

Contractor shall provide and install all material necessary for the project including pipe, fittings, wyes, pipe 
connections, trench resurfacing, excavation, bedding and backfill.   Hydrostatic test, mandrel testing and/or television 
testing shall be provided as required by the City Engineer. 

Sewer Pipe and Fittings:  PVC SDR-35 conform to ASTM D 3034 for diameters from 4” to 15” with integral-bell 
gasket joints. Rubber gaskets shall be factory installed and conform to ASTM F 477. Pipe joints shall conform to 
ASTM D 3212. 

Trench backfill shall consist of sand bedding around pipe per Standard Specifications and trench zone backfill from 
top of sand bedding to bottom of roadway pavement section with slurry cement backfill or compacted aggregate 
base. 

SEWER MANHOLES 

Contractor shall provide and install all material necessary for manhole installation in accordance with the standard 
specifications.    Manholes shall be watertight structures.   The inside base of manholes shall be shaped to provide 
channels conforming to the size and crown of the inlets and outlets.   Pipe penetrations shall be sealed with a 
watertight seal. 

 

 



SEWER CLEANOUTS 

Contractor shall provide and install all material necessary for sewer lateral connections under bid item for sewer 
pipe and bid item for cleanouts.     Cleanouts shall be installed for each building lateral and on the upstream side of 
any fitting with 45 degree or greater bend.   Cleanouts shall be boxed to grade with a cast iron lid. 

WATER LINE PIPE AND FITTINGS 

Contractor shall provide and install all material necessary for the project including tubing, and pipe, horizontal and 
vertical elbows, short pipe pieces, corporation stops, piping connections, couplings, jointing materials, warning tape, 
valve box and lid, excavation, bedding and backfill.   Water pipe 4” and larger shall be CL150 C900.   Water pipe 
smaller than 4” shall be PE polyethylene water supply line.   Flushing, disinfection testing and pressure testing shall 
be provided. 

Trench backfill shall consist of sand bedding around pipe per Standard Specifications and trench zone backfill from 
top of sand bedding to bottom of roadway pavement section with slurry cement backfill or compacted aggregate 
base. 

WATER SERVICES 

New saddles and taps will be Corporation Stops with a double brass saddle for a 6” water main.  Water service will 
be shut off and restarted by City personnel.  Each shut off beyond 10 hours will result in a charge of $70 per hour 
with a 4hour minimum. 

B-16 Water Meter boxes shall be placed and centered on water meters.   

 

GENERAL NOTES 

Refer to City of Nevada City General Notes and Specifications. 

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-XX 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY  
TO AWARD A CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER TO CME SERVICES FOR SEWER 
REPAIRS AT WEST BROAD STREET AND VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN NEVADA 

CITY AND AUTHORIZE MAYOR TO SIGN  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Nevada City to award the 
Contract change order to CME Services in the amount of $17,000 for Sewer Repairs 
at West Broad Street and Various Locations in Nevada City and authorize the Mayor 
to sign.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular scheduled meeting of the City Council 
held on the 28th day of February 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
           _____ 
       Duane Strawser, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ACTION MINUTES 

STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 7, 2018 

 
CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST – 8:00 AM 
 
SPECIAL MEETING – 8:30 AM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:    Present:  Phelps, Moberg, Vice Mayor Parker, Mayor Strawser 
  Absent until 9 AM:  Senum, 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
A. Subject:  City Of Nevada City To Authorize The Mayor To Sign A Letter Of Support 

On Behalf Of Nevada City For Bear Yuba Land Trust And Partners Pines To Mines 
Trail 
Recommendation:  Authorize the Mayor to sign a letter of support for Bear Yuba 
Land Trust and Partners Pines to Mines Trail. 
 

B. Subject:  Rescind Resolution No. 2017-87 And Approve Resolution 2018-04 The 
City Council Of The City Of Nevada City, California Calling A Municipal Election For 
June 5, 2018; Submitting A Cannabis Business Tax Ordinance To The Voters At 
That Election; Requesting The Assistance Of The County Of Nevada In Connection 
With That Election; And Requesting Consolidation Of That Election With Any Other 
Election Held On That Date 
Recommendation: Rescind Resolution No. 2017-87 and approve Resolution 2018-
04 submitting a cannabis business tax ordinance to the voters at the June 5, 2018 
election, request for assistance of the County of Nevada in connection with that 
election and request for the consolidation of that election with any other election held 
on that date. 
 

Action: Motion by Evans, seconded by Parker to approve Consent Item 3A as presented. 
(Approved 4 - 0) - Senum Absent 
 
Action: Item 3B Pulled by City Manager to Discuss Slight Changes to Ballot Question 
Wording provided in the staff report then put forward for approval. Motion by Evans, 
seconded by Moberg to approve insertion of “(marijuana)” Consent Item 3A as presented. 
(Approved 4 - 0) - Senum Absent 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

[Type here] 
 

 

STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT AGENDA: 
 
Opening Remark and Introduction of the Facilitator and Recorder – Catrina Olson, City 
Manager 
 
Role of the Facilitator, Recorder, Group and Public; Strategic Planning Elements; Agenda – 
Marilyn Snider, Facilitator – Snider and Associates 
 
Introductions of the Group 
 
Nevada City: 
• Mission/Purpose Statement 
• Vision Statement 
• Core Values/Guiding Principles 
• Three-Year Goals (2016-2019) 
 
What Are the Strengths and the Accomplishments of the City of Nevada City since the August 
18, 2017 Strategic Planning Retreat? 
 
What Are the City’s Current Internal Weaknesses/Challenges? 
 
What Are the External Factors/Trends (e.g., political, economic, social, technological) that 
Will/Might Have an Impact on the City of Nevada City in the Coming Year: 
• Positively (opportunities)? 
• Negatively (threats)? 
 
Review and Revise, if needed the Three-Year Goals (what the City of Nevada City needs to 
accomplish) 
 
 Identify Six-Month Strategic Objectives (how the goals will be addressed – by when, 
 who will be accountable, for what specific, measurable results) for each of the Three- 
 Year Goals 
 
Next Steps/Follow-Up Process (including setting a date in 6 months to update the strategic 
plan) 
 
Summary of the Retreat and Closing Remarks 
 
12.   ADJOURNMENT – 1:30 pm                                    

                                       
_______________________________________          

        Duane Strawser, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 14, 2018 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick 
Links and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  
Select the meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please 
contact Loree’ McCay, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
  
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
-  Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) a closed session is 
requested with City Manager Catrina Olson and City Attorney Hal DeGraw on a 
personnel matter.  

 
2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 the City Manager Catrina Olson 

and City Attorney Hal DeGraw are requesting a closed session conference to 
confer on litigation involving the City in the case of City of Nevada City v. Letty 
Cano Barocia, et al., Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. TBD, Claim 
No. NCWA-556924. 

 
3. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 the Consulting City Attorney’s 

Hal DeGraw and P. Scott Browne are requesting a closed session conference to 
confer on litigation involving the City in the case of Friends of Spring Street vs. 
Nevada City, et al., Nevada County Superior Court Case No. CIV 1304393, 
Appellate Case No. C081195. 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:    Present:  Moberg, Phelps, Senum, Vice Mayor Parker, & Mayor Strawser 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
Consulting City Attorney, Hal DeGraw reported out of Closed Session:  

1. Staff to proceed as directed. 
2. Accepted settlement apportionment as proposed. 
3. Staff to proceed as directed. 

 
 
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

 
PRESENTATIONS:  CABY Presentation by Katie Burdick 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 
 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for 
comments. 

A. Subject:  Resolution Of The City Of Nevada City Council Calling For 
California's US Senators To Introduce The We The People Constitutional 
Amendment  
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2018-05 calling for California's US        
Senators to introduce the We The People Constitutional Amendment. 

Action: Motion by Phelps, seconded by Senum to approve Item 2A as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
A. Subject:  Fire Activity Report – January 2018 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
 

B. Subject:  Accounts Payable Activity Report – January 2018 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

C. Subject:  A Resolution Of  The City Council Of  Nevada City To Adopt A 
Determination Of A CalPERS Member’s Industrial Disability Retirement For 
Police Officer Shane Franssen 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2018-06 to adopt a determination of a 
CalPERs member’s industrial disability retirement for Police Officer Shane 
Franssen. 
 

D. Subject:  A Resolution Of The City Council Of Nevada City To Adopt A 
Determination Of A CalPERS Member’s Industrial Disability Retirement For 
Police Officer Gary Scott Clendenen 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2018-07 to adopt a determination of a 
CalPERs member’s industrial disability retirement for Police Officer Gary 
Scott Clendenen. 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


3 

[Type here] 
 

 

Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Parker to approve Consent Items 3A - 3D as 
presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 
 
4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 

A. City Council Meeting – January 24th, 2018 
Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Parker to approve January 24th, 2018 
minutes as presented. 
(Approved 3 – 0: 2 Abstained - Moberg & Phelps (due to absence) 
 
 
5.  DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS:  
 

A. Subject:  Request The Nevada City, City Council To Review And Approve 
The Letter to CalPERS Requesting That CalPERS Forgo The 180 Day 
Waiting Period For Officer Gary Clendenen To Allow Return To Employment 
With The City Of Nevada City As A Non-Sworn Part-Time Retired Annuitant 
Recommendation:  Approve the attached letter to CalPERS requesting Officer 
Gary Clendenen be allowed to return to employment with the City of Nevada 
City as a non-sworn part-time retired annuitant and forgo the 180 day standard 
separation of employment generally required by CalPERS. 

Action: Motion by Phelps, seconded by Parker to approve as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 
B. Subject:  Brownfields Clean-up Project on Providence Mine Site 

Recommendation: Accept and File 
Action: No action. 
 

C. Subject:  Acceptance Of Audit Report For Fiscal Year 2016/2017 
Recommendation: Review and accept the City of Nevada City Annual 
Financial Statements and Management Letter for year ended June 30, 2017. 

Action: No action. 
 

D. Subject:  Request For Direction On Handling Of Large Number Of 
Applications To Operate Other Medical Cannabis Businesses 
Recommendation: Provide direction to staff on the handling of pending 
applications to operate other medical cannabis businesses. 

Action: No action.  
        
 
6.     PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
 
7.    OLD BUSINESS: 



4 

[Type here] 
 

 

 
A. Subject:  Review Draft Amendment Ordinance 2018-XX To Ordinance 2017-

06 Section 9.22.040 (Medical Cannabis Businesses) Amending Item A.1 
(Medical Cannabis Dispensaries) To Allow Nevada City Council To Increase 
Permitted Medical Cannabis Dispensaries From One (1) To Three (3) 
Recommendation:  Waive reading of the Ordinance, read title only and 
introduce for the first reading. 

Action: In advance of vote, Council was polled. Parker, Strawser, Senum and Phelps 
all preferred one (1) dispensary and Phelps preferred three (3).  These results 
prompted the Council to take no action on item 7A.  
(No action taken) 
 
 
8.    NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: A Resolution Of City Council Of The City Of Nevada City Setting 
Aside Decision Granting Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision  
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2018-08 setting aside decision granting 
appeal of planning commission decision. 

Action: Motion by Moberg, seconded by Parker to approve as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 
 

9.   CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
 

10.   ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
 
11.   CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  
 
 
12.   ADJOURNMENT – 10:39 pm        
                              

                                       
_______________________________________          

        Duane Strawser, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
February 28, 2018      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:    1st Quarter Financial Update, Fiscal Year (FY) 17/18 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  

CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
 
As of September 30, 2016, the City had $521k in the General Checking, $686 million in 
the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) yielding .60%, and $1.24 million in 
Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) with an average portfolio maturity of 3 years and an 
average yield of 1.2%.  The cumulative cash total for the City was $2.54 million vs. 
$3.12 million September 30, 2015.  The reduced cash flow is significantly tied to the 
project work that the City has been conducting associated to grants and Measure “S” 
and is timing related as the City submits for reimbursements. 
 
The City’s General Fund does not currently have any long term debt as of September 
30, 2016 vs. $14.6k September 30, 2015.  The reduction in debt is associated to the 
payoff of vehicles that were purchased through Ford.  The City did not take a transfer of 
funds leveraging Nevada City Property Taxes from Nevada County for the fy 16/17. 
 
The City’s Enterprise Fund long term debt was $4.1 million as of September 30, 2016 
vs. $4.3 million as of September 30, 2015, $170k lower, associated to regular principal 
reduction payments. 
 
As of September 30, 2016, General Fund revenues were $726k vs. $556k September 
30, 2015, an increase of $170k, year over year (yoy) associated with increases in sales 
tax, transient occupancy tax, business licenses and other income. The increase in sales 
taxes is timing related as the City received and posted a sales tax payment that didn’t 
post until early October last fiscal year.  The increase in business licenses is related to 
the fee structure change and approximately $20k is related to businesses opting to pay 
for a 3 year business license which is considered unearned revenue and will be moved 
into the next fiscal year during the year-end close.  The increase in other income is 
associated to the final insurance reimbursement for the Police Department 2015 Chevy 
Tahoe and is a one-time revenue.  General Fund revenues received at $726k were 20% 



(not quite 25% associated to timing in receipt of property taxes) of the $3.5 million 
budget. Extracting the $20k of unearned revenue, the additional sales tax payment of 
$60.8k and the insurance claim reimbursement of $11.2k would leave revenues at 
$634k for the 1st quarter still higher comparatively yoy.   
     
As of September 30, 2016, the General Fund expenditures were at $1.26 million vs. 
$1.04 million September 30, 2015, an increase of $222k yoy.  General Administration 
expenditures at $230k were 24% of the $949k operational and capital budget. The Fire 
Department expenditures at $233k were 34% of the $803k operational and capital. 
Salary and benefit costs for two of the new Firefighters will be covered by Measure “L” 
funds for the first 9 months of fy 16/17.  The City has secured funding through ballot 
Measure “C” for the three additional positions that were added at Station 54 to replace 
those removed by the Consolidated Fire District.  The City will begin using these funds 
for the three positions beginning April 2017 upon receipt of the first new special tax 
revenue installment. The Police Department expenditures at $529k were 32% of the 
$1.66 million budget. The Department of Public Works expenditures at $109k were 27% 
of the $409k operational budget.  The Parks and Recreation Department expenditures 
at $101k were 37% of the $273k budget.  The Park and Recreation Department’s 
budget overage as of the end of the 1st quarter for fy 15/16 was tied to the seasonality of 
the expenditures for the pool and pool programs.  The Veteran’s Building expenditures 
at $12k were 24% of the $49k budget.  Typically at the completion of the 1st quarter 
departmental expenditures should be approximately 25% of budget.  Overall operational 
expenditures at $1.04 million were 28% of the $3.73 million budget. 
 
The General Fund had expenditures exceeding revenues of $532k as of September 30, 
2016, higher than the previous fiscal year because the City had capital outlay 
expenditures in the Fire Department and the Police Department that were not expended 
in the 15/16 fiscal year.  The City has a positive unassigned fund balance of $591k 
ending fy 15/16 and has maintained a continued improving economic financial position 
over the last five fiscal years. It continues to be crucial that City Staff monitor incoming 
revenues and prioritize and review program expenditures to support preserving and 
improving the current financial status. 
 
As of September 30, 2016, Special Fund revenues were $559k and were 15% of the 
$3.69 million budget.  The City’s two special tax measures have performing on budget 
The City has received $154k in Measure “S” sales tax revenues and were 26% of the 
$595k budget, and $114k in Measure “L” sales tax revenues and were 26% of $435k 
budget.  Most Special Fund revenues are tied to the timing of expenditures by the City 
and reimbursement based.     
  



As of September 30, 2016, the Special Fund expenditures including capital outlay were 
$181k and were 1% of the overall $3.8 million budget.  Special Fund expenditures are 
all timing related.   
 
As of September 30, 2016, the Water Fund revenues were $180k vs. $162k September 
30, 2015.  The increase in Water Fund revenues of $18.3k was associated to increased 
water consumption compared to the same time last year.  Water Fund revenues 
received at $180k were 24% of the $762k budget. 
 
As of September 30, 2016 the Water Fund expenditures were at $192k vs. $178k 
September 30, 2015.  The increase of $14k in Water Fund expenditures was associated 
primarily to an increase in water equipment repair and maintenance and the purchase of 
NID water.  The Water Department and Water Distribution fund with expenditures of 
$191k were 25% of the $778k operational and capital budget.  
 
The Water Fund had expenditures exceeding revenues of $12k as of September 30, 
2016.  The Water Fund had been experiencing an improved unrestricted financial 
position, however, has experienced continued erosion ending fy 14/15 at $(168k) and 
now ending fy 15/16 $(324k).  If conservation practices of recent years remain, the City 
will continue to experience a slowing in Water Fund revenues, and with the increase in 
expenditures for necessary repairs, it is critical that City Staff explore efficiencies in 
operations and reductions in expenditures to maintain the improving financial position of 
the Water Fund. 
 
As of September 30, 2016, the Wastewater Fund revenues were $244k vs. $187k 
September 30, 2015.  The increase in Wastewater Fund revenues of $56k was 
associated to the fee structure revenue collection correction.  Last fiscal year the 
financial system was programmed incorrectly and the City was under billing wastewater 
charges.  The error was found and corrected and the City has been collecting the 
correct amount including back charges. Wastewater Fund revenues received at $244k 
were 20% of the $1.3 million budget. 
 
As of September 30, 2016, the Wastewater Fund expenditures were at $483k vs. $466k 
September 30, 2015.  The increase of $17k in Wastewater Fund expenditures was 
associated to capital outlay of $88k for the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The 
Wastewater Department and Wastewater Distribution fund with expenditures of $483k 
were 29% of the $1.67 million operational and capital outlay budget.  
 
The Wastewater Fund had expenditures exceeding revenues of $238k as of September 
30, 2016.  The Wastewater Fund continues to maintain a positive fund position with an 



unrestricted balance of $2.0 million ending fy 15/16. However, the last 3 fiscal years has 
experienced significant erosion.  City Staff will need to closely monitor incoming 
revenues, which wastewater rates have not been adjusted since 2005, and prioritize 
and review operational and capital expenditures to support preserving and improving 
the wastewater fund financial status. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Fund Financial Status Report 
 Statement of Condition 
 Revenue and Expenditure Report (General Fund, Special Funds, Water Fund & 

Sewer Fund) 
 Major Revenue Graphs 

   
 





















-9-

YTD Analysis Measure "C" Sales Tax
3200-107 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun total

FY 16/17 26,449$  26,400$  35,200$  88,049$   
-$               

FY 17/18 26,400$  35,200$  58,157$  119,757$ 
119,757$    

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

$-

Measure "C" Sales Tax
3 months ending FY 2018

FY 16/17

FY 17/18

















REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
FEBRUARY 28, 2018      www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  An Ordinance Of The City Of Nevada City Retitling And Amending Section 
9.22.110 Of Chapter 9.22 Of The Nevada City Municipal Code, Entitled ‘Additional 
Requirements For Cultivation Facilities’ Relating To Medical Cannabis 
Dispensaries And Other Cannabis Businesses And Activity 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to staff on whether or not  bring back for a first 
reading the attached Ordinance No. 2018-XX retitling and amending Section 9.22.110 
of Chapter 9.22 of the Nevada City Municipal Code for the purpose of limiting cultivation 
sizes that may be permitted within city limits. 
 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: On June 28, 2017, the City Council adopted 
Ordinance 2017-10, amending chapter 9.22 of title 9 of the Nevada City municipal code 
to allow for the establishment, permitting, and regulation of medical cannabis cultivation, 
manufacturing, distributing, and testing laboratory businesses to operate within the city, 
provided they receive a permit from the City and comply with all state and local legal 
requirements. The ordinance allows the planning commission to issue permits to 
qualified applicants at approved locations for any of the above categories of medical 
cannabis business. The Ordinance includes “Operating Requirements for Medical 
Cannabis Businesses (§9.22.090)” that are applicable to all medical cannabis 
businesses and goes on to require additional operating requirements for medical 
cannabis dispensaries (§9.22.100), cultivation facilities (§9.22.110), and manufacturing 
businesses (§9.22.120). 
 
The additional requirements in place for medical cannabis cultivation facilities prohibit 
outdoor operations and requires that plants not be visible to the public. It also requires 
submission of an odor mitigation plan and an operations plan to address drainage and 
runoff impacts. The ordinance does not currently provide any limit on the size of 
cultivation facilities. Mayor Strawser has requested that staff draft language to amend 
the ordinance with a suggested size limitation for council’s consideration.   The timing of 
this request did not allow enough time to provide notice of a public hearing so staff is 
seeking direction on whether to bring this back for a first reading at the March 14, 2018 
city council meeting. 
 
PROPOSED  ORDINANCE: The draft Ordinance before you amends section §9.22.110 
of the City Municipal Code, adding subsection ‘H’ which would limit medical cannabis 
cultivation facilities to an indoor facility no larger than 2,500 square feet. This is 
consistent with two of the state’s cultivation license types “Specialty Cottage Indoor” or 
“Specialty Cottage Mixed Light Tier 1 and 2.” The State has other license types for 
larger cultivation sites up to 22,000 square feet. As currently adopted, applicants could 
apply for a facility of that size. If the ordinance is amended as drafted, state license 
types that allow for cultivation sites larger than 2,500 square feet would not be available 
to applicants within city limits.  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
The City does not currently have any applications seeking a medical cannabis 
cultivation facility. Staff has recently received a request for zoning verification of a site 
intended for medical cannabis manufacturing, cultivation, and distribution. The zoning 
verification letter does not indicate a size expectation for the cultivation component, but 
the floor plan on file for the requested facility is smaller than 2,500 square feet so the 
Ordinance amendment as drafted is not expected to affect the requestor’s future 
proposal.  
 
Finally, staff is suggesting that the title of Section 9.22.110 of the City Municipal Code 
be retitled as follows “Additional Requirements for Medical Cannabis Cultivation 
Facilities.” The revised wording to include “medical cannabis” in the title provides 
consistency with the other titles. This amendment will also provide added clarity as to 
the medical nature of all cannabis businesses that may receive a permit to operate 
within the city.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  This ordinance amendment is considered 
exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Title 14, 
Chapter 3, California Code of Regulations, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 (b)(3) – 
Activity is not subject to CEQA because it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment. 
Amending the existing ordinance to add a limitation on medical cannabis cultivation size 
will provide limitations similar to other businesses that deal in non-cannabis products 
that are already authorized within the City. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  This Ordinance amendment will not impact the fee structure 
currently in place for all medical cannabis business applications.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

 
 Draft Ordinance No. 2018-XX, amending Section 9.22.110 of the City Municipal 

Code to include a size limitation on medical cannabis cultivation facilities 



 
 
 

ORDINANCE  NO. 2018-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
 RETITLING AND AMENDING SECTION 9.22.110 OF CHAPTER 9.22  
OF THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED ‘ADDITIONAL 

REQUIREMENTS FOR CULTIVATION FACILITIES’ RELATING TO MEDICAL 
CANNABIS DISPENSARIES AND OTHER CANNABIS BUSINESSES AND 

ACTIVITY 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council passed and adopted Ordinance No. 2017-05 
on March 22, 2017, enacting Chapter 17.140 of the Nevada City Municipal Code 
regulating personal cannabis cultivation regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, said regulations prohibited outdoor personal cultivation of 
cannabis and imposed limitations on personal indoor cannabis cultivation 
including limitations on size not to exceed 25 square feet or six living plants 
without approval of the Chief of Police based upon a documented showing of 
medical necessity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council passed and adopted Ordinance No. 2017-10 

on June 28, 2017, amending Chapter 9.22 of the Nevada City Municipal Code 
entitled Medical Cannabis Dispensaries and other Cannabis Businesses and 
Activity that allowed for the establishment, permitting and regulating of other 
medical cannabis businesses, including commercial medical cannabis cultivation 
facilities, and 

 
WHEREAS, said regulations prohibited outdoor cultivation of cannabis 

and required that all allowed medical cannabis cultivation must occur indoors, but 
failed to include any size limitations on commercial medical cannabis cultivation 
facilities when adding section 9.22.110 entitled Additional Requirements for 
Cultivation Facilities (potentially creating confusion by omitting the “Medical” 
modifier); and  

 
WHEREAS, the State’s emergency regulations define “canopy” and  list in 

Section 8201 cultivation licenses types it may issue depending on size ranging 
from  “’Specialty Cottage Indoor” with a cultivation site of 500 square feet or less 
of total canopy (mixed light up to 2,500 square feet, through ”Small Indoor” with a 
cultivation site between 5,001 and 10,000 square feet; and “Medium Indoor” with 
a cultivation site between 10,001 and 22,000 square feet, and it is desirable to 
limit the size of allowed commercial medical cannabis cultivation facilities the City 
may allow.. 

 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City as follows: 
 
SECTION I: 
 
To follow the format of preceding and following sections and to make clear that 
all City cannabis regulations relate to medical, not recreational, cannabis the title 
of Section 9.22.110 of Chapter 9.22 of the Nevada County Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“9.22.110  Additional Requirements for Medical Cannabis Cultivation 
Facilities.” 

 
SECTION II: 
 
Section 9.22.110 is amended to add subsection H to read as follows: 
 
“H.    Indoor facilities for medical cannabis cultivation shall not exceed Two  
        Thousand Five Hundred (2,500) square feet and shall for and secure a  
         State Cultivation license of either the ‘Specialty Cottage Indoor’ or  
         ‘Specialty Cottage Mixed-Light Tier 1 and 2’ type”.  
 
SECTION III:  
 
In all other respects Chapter 9.22 shall remain unchanged and in full force and 
effect.  
 
SECTION IV:  
 
This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after its final adoption and a copy 
of this ordinance shall be published in The Union, a newspaper of general 
circulation, within fifteen (15) days of the date of its passage. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of __________, 2018 by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
                ________________________________ 
      Duane Strawser, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
February 28, 2018      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Review City Attorney Memorandum And Consider Drafting An Amendment To 
Nevada City Municipal Code Section 17.142.030 To Include Language That Addresses 
The Matter Of Proximity Of Cannabis Businesses To Day Care Centers And Youth 
Centers And Define Terms 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review City Attorney memorandum and provide direction to the City 
Manager and City Attorney to draft language regarding separation from day care centers and 
youth centers with a definition of these terms amending Nevada City Municipal Code section 
17.142.030. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: 
A memorandum from Hal DeGraw, City Attorney addressing regulations concerning excessive 
concentration and location of cannabis businesses to day care centers and youth centers was 
provided at the February 14, 2018 meeting and is attached to the staff report being presented. 
 
At that meeting the information was reviewed, however, direction was not provided as to how 
to proceed with the information provided. 
 
In the memorandum from Hal DeGraw, City Attorney the conclusion regarding separation was 
as follows: 
 

There is no need to reconsider approved cannabis businesses, but any approval of any future 
applications for medical cannabis dispensaries and other medical cannabis businesses should 
require 600’ of separation from day care centers and youth centers to conform to State licensure 
regulations and our City requirements should be changed to add that location requirement and 
define “youth centers”. 

Staff requests that the City Council review the information provided in the memorandum and 
provide direction to staff regarding drafting amended language to address the matter of 
proximity of cannabis businesses to day care centers and youth centers and define these 
terms. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 Memorandum – Hal DeGraw, City Attorney 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
 
DATE:  February 7, 2018 
 
TO:  City Council 
 
FROM: Hal DeGraw, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: State regulations concerning excessive concentration and location of dispensaries  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City has approved one application of “Elevation 2477” to operate a medical cannabis 
dispensary at 569 Searls Avenue pursuant to Ordinance No. 2017-06 which limited the initial 
maximum number of permits to one for the first 12 months. This selection was made on a split 
vote of the Council following a long selection process in which three applicants were determined 
to be similarly qualified. Following the selection process at its December 13, 2017 meeting a 
majority of the Council indicated an interest in expanding the number of dispensaries allowed 
from 1 to 3, considering only the two other applications it had for the two additional dispensaries. 
The Council directed staff to draft an ordinance amendment increasing the maximum number of 
dispensaries allowed to three in the first year so that the other two applicants could be considered. 
 
Staff drafted and presented such an amendment to the Council at its January 10th meeting, but 
no action was taken pursuant to staff’s recommendation that it first have an opportunity to study 
the state regulations on excessive concentration and present findings to the Council.  The Council 
also requested staff to look into the issue of what the State required with regard to separation 
from other uses, such as “youth centers”. This memorandum is intended to address those issues 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Whether our local ordinance provides so or not, cities must comply with any preemptive State 
requirements with regard to location or concentration of dispensaries. In fact, under subsection A 
of §9.22.090 of the adopted City ordinance on operating requirements for medical cannabis 
dispensaries, it is provided that “Nothing in this Chapter shall be construed as authorizing any 
actions which violate state law with regard to the operation of a medical cannabis business.” 
 
Concentration issue: 
 
The draft regulations of the State Bureau of Cannabis Control in §5019 provide: 

“(a) In determining whether to grant, deny, or renew a license for a retail license or micro 
business license, the Bureau shall consider if an excessive concentration exists in the area 
where the licensee will operate. For the purposes of this section ‘excessive concentration’ 
applies when either of the following conditions exist: 
(1) The ratio of licenses to population within the census tract or census division in which the 

applicant premises is located exceeds the ratio of licenses to population in the county in 
which the applicant premises is located, unless denial of the application would unduly limit 
the development of the legal market so as to perpetuate the illegal market for cannabis or 
cannabis products. 



(2) The ratio of retail licenses or micro business licenses to the population within the census 
tract, census division, or jurisdiction exceeds that allowable by local ordinance adopted 
under section 26200.” 

 
Two things are apparent in reading this regulation: 

1) the “excessive concentration” the State is concerned about relates to the total number of 
dispensaries in a city rather than to their proximity to each other, and 

2) the conditions are set forth in the alternative so that the number allowed need only meet 
one condition, not both. 

 As long as there are currently no other dispensaries in Nevada County, there is no way the City 
could allow even one dispensary meeting the ratio test until more than 32 were allowed county-
wide. However, this is not the end of meeting the State regulatory requirements. The conditions 
to be met are stated in the alternative and the second one demonstrates that the State will defer 
to local jurisdictions regarding the number of licenses allowed for cannabis businesses, i.e. the 
State regulations will allow the City to have 3 medical cannabis dispensaries if that number does 
not exceed that allowed by local ordinance. 
 
Although not controlling so long as the second condition is met, the alternative part of the first 
condition suggests that in setting the number of licenses allowable, lawmakers should consider 
what number of dispensaries should be allowed so as not to unduly limit the development of the 
legal market in medical cannabis and perpetuate the illegal market. 
 
Separation from other uses issue:  
 
The Application Procedure for Medical Cannabis Dispensary Permits approved by Resolution No. 
2017-37 adopted on June 14, 2017 provides with regard to the proposed location under the 
description of evaluation criteria: 

“Your application must include the APN, address, and a detailed description of the 
proposed location. … This section should also describe all schools, preschools, or public 
parks within six hundred (600) linear feet of the business’s property lines. The MCD must 
be located in the appropriate City zone and meet all of the locational requirements as 
described in NCMC Section 17.142.” 

 
Nevada City Municipal Code section 17.142.030 with regard to location states: 
“ Medical cannabis dispensaries shall be permitted only as follows: 

(a) In the following zoning designations: general Business (GB), excluding those 
properties designated with an Historic District (HD) overlay, Local Business (LB), and 
Light Industrial (LI) Zones. 

(b) No closer than six hundred (600) feet from any portion of any parcel in the City limits 
containing any of the following: 
(1) A school, including pre-school, transitional kindergarten, and K-12 that is in 

existence at the time the initial medical cannabis dispensary permit is issued; or  
(2) A public park that is managed by the City of Nevada City that is in existence at the 

time the initial medical cannabis dispensary permit is issued.” 
 
On November 16, 2017, California state regulators released 276 pages of draft Emergency 
Cannabis Regulations that were adopted for State licensing beginning on January 1, 2018. 
Section 5026(a) of those Regulations provides the following minimum distance requirements for 
commercial medicinal and adult-use cannabis industries, as summarized in a Meyers Nave Legal 
Alert: 



“A premises cannot be located within a 600-foot radius of a school providing instruction in 
kindergarten or any grades 1 through 12, day care center, or youth center that is in 
existence at the time the license is issued. A local jurisdiction should consider defining 
what a youth center is. Youth centers come in many shapes and sizes with various types 
of operations and operators.”  

 
That summary further provides: 

“Section 5026(b) provides that notwithstanding subsection (a), if a local jurisdiction has 
issued a license or permit to conduct commercial cannabis activity at a premises that is 
located within a 600-foot radius of a school providing instruction in kindergarten or any 
grades 1 through 12, day care center, or youth center, the Bureau may approve the 
premises for licensure if the following conditions are met: (1) The applicant submits a copy 
of a valid license or permit from the local jurisdiction with the application for licensure; and 
(2) The local jurisdiction notifies the Bureau that the applicant is in compliance with all 
applicable local ordinances and regulations pursuant to Business and Professions Code 
section 26055(g)(2)(C).” 

 
Note that in addition to the 600’ separation of medical cannabis dispensaries from schools and 
parks required by Nevada City’s adopted Municipal Code provisions, the State Regulations also 
require a 600’ separation of all commercial cannabis businesses (including dispensaries) from day 
care centers or youth centers (to be defined locally).  The second part of the location section of 
the State regulations indicates that the State will defer to the local jurisdictions as to approved 
permits in issuing its licenses - so that the omission of consideration of separation of the approved 
dispensary location from a youth center will not preclude State licensure. However, any future 
applications should also require 600’ separations from day care centers and youth centers and 
our location criteria should be so changed (defining youth centers as suggested by the State 
Regulations) for medical cannabis dispensaries as well as any other cannabis businesses 
allowed. 
 
CONCLUSIONS: 
 
Concentration: Existing State regulations do not preclude the City from increasing the number 
of medical cannabis dispensaries allowed in the City from one to three. The State regulations 
address concentration in terms of the overall number within the City, rather than their proximity to 
each other, and generally defer to the City in terms of setting a maximum number of dispensaries 
allowed. 
 
Separation: There is no need to reconsider approved cannabis businesses, but any approval of 
any future applications for medical cannabis dispensaries and other medical cannabis businesses 
should require 600’ of separation from day care centers and youth centers to conform to State 
licensure regulations and our City requirements should be changed to add that location 
requirement and define “youth centers”. 

 
 

 
 

 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
FEBRUARY 28, 2018      www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Consideration Of A Proposal By Owner Of National Hotel To Vacate 
National Alley As A Public Roadway 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  In conformance with Section 65402 of the Government Code, 
City Council directs Planning Commission to review the application for vacation of 
National Alley and its conformance with the General Plan.   This shall include a public 
hearing, CEQA Environmental Assessment and a review of applicable policies, 
regulations and mitigation measures.  The Planning Commission shall provide 
recommendation to the City Council for vacation of the alley with conditions of approval 
within forty (40) days after the matter is submitted to it. 

CONTACT:   Catrina Olson, City Manager 
Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 

 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The National Exchange Hotel Company, current 
owner of the National Hotel at 211 Broad Street, has submitted a proposal to vacate 
National Alley as a public right-of-way.  This includes a request to relocate pedestrian 
access to a location adjacent to the property line, relocate utility easements as required 
and vacate National Alley as vehicular right-of-way in exchange for fee title to similar 
area under relocated pedestrian walk. 
 
A list of streets previously vacated or abandoned by the City and reasons for the 
vacation or abandonment is provided herein as an attachment for reference. 
 
Applicant shall provide a title report with the vacation request which vests fee title of 
National Alley right-of-way in exchange for a reservation of utility easement and 
pedestrian walk right-of-way at the perimeter of the property line, and provide legal 
descriptions associated with this request.   The proposed vacation shall be referred to 
affected City departments and local utility companies, to request written confirmation 
that there is no objection to abandonment of public utilities easement.   The alley shall 
be evaluated by City staff and the Planning Commission to determine if it is not 
necessary to serve present or future traffic needs in the area and that the vacation of 
the alley is in conformance with the General Plan and Circulation Element.   An Initial 
Study shall be prepared by the City of Nevada City to analyze whether the project may 
cause any significant effect on the environment.  
 
The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing to receive and consider evidence 
both oral and documentary.   Section 8313 of the Streets and Highways Code states 
that the Planning Commission shall review the proposed vacation and report on its 

file://FS-NEVCT/NEVCITY/CLERK/CITY%20COUNCIL%20MEETINGS/Agendas%202017/CC%20Agenda%2012.13.17/www.nevadacityca.gov


conformance with the General Plan.  Section 65402 of the Government Code requires 
that the Planning Commission report to the City Council as to whether the disposal of 
real property conforms to the City of Nevada City General Plan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  To be determined as part of Planning Commission review. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 Proposal to vacate National Alley 
 Site drawings and photos 
 List of streets abandoned by the City 

 



VIA EMAIL 

2/23/18 

Catrina Olson 
317 Broad Street 
 Nevada City, CA 95959 

 

RE: REQUEST FOR NATIONAL ALLEY VACATION 

Mrs. Olson, 

Per precedent under Title 7, 6500-66499.59, sub section Planning and Zoning 6500-66210, Chapter 3 
Local planning 65100-65763, Article 7 Administration of general planning 655402; 211 Broad St, LLC 
formally request and presents a proposal to Vacate the National Alleyway and vehicular ride away. 211 
Broad St LLC will provide the City a reserve to utility easement under said ground and comparable 
square footage at the perimeter of the property line (as shown in renderings) in exchange for the City 
usage to relocate the National Alleyway. 

 

Thank you.  
 
Jordan Fife 

Jordan Fife 
Managing Partner 

NATIONAL EXCHANGE HOTEL COMPANY (DBA 211 Broad ST LLC) 

www.NationalExchangeHotels.com 

Howdy@NationalExchangeHotels.com 
C- 760-641-2159 

  

 

 

 

 

http://www.nationalexchangehotels.com/
mailto:Howdy@NationalExchangeHotels.com
tel:760-641-2159


5'-0"

Existing Site Survey and Proposed Public Walk Location
2/23/2018



Planned Improvements
2/23/2018







 
  
 LIST OF STREETS ABANDONED BY NEVADA CITY 
 
 
STREET   YEAR   REASON FOR ABANDONMENT 
 
Bridge Street    1862   Bridge washed out  
(creek crossing to Zion) 
 
Conley Street   1875   Catholic Cemetery 
(W Broad to Orchard) 
 
Mt. Calvary   1900   Piety Hill Subdivision  
(Cross to S Pine) 
 
Jordan Street   1900   Piety Hill Subdivision 
(Cross to S Pine) 
 
China Street   1910   Manzanita Subdivision 
 
 
Washington Road  1930   SR20 Construction 
(Coyote to Nevada) 
 
Manzanita Street  1930   SR20 Construction 
(WA to Maz Diggins) 
 
Winter Street   1961   Courthouse Construction 
(WA to Church) 
 
Uren Street   1968   SR 20/49 Freeway Construction 
(B to Coyote) 
 
Main Street   1968   SR 20/49 Freeway Construction 
(Nevada to Coyote) 
 
 
 
 
 
DATED: February 23, 2018     CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
        ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
FEBRUARY 28, 2018     www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  LAFCo Review Of The Nevada City Sphere Of Influence (SOI) Update  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  At the September 21, 2018 LAFCo meeting, 
commissioners directed LAFCo staff to move forward with determining the appropriate level 
of  environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
necessary for the Nevada City SOI Update. They continued action on the SOI update until 
LAFCo staff is prepared to provide a more specific recommendation regarding  
environmental review.   
 
LAFCo staff has distributed a “Request for Proposals (RFP)” to environmental consulting 
firms asking that they reflect their ability to prepare an environmental document that 
analyzes the environmental impacts of three SOI alternatives, attached and summarized as 
follows:  
 

• LAFCo staff’s original recommendation entailing a significant reduction in the city’s 
SOI boundary 

 
• Nevada City staff’s recommendation which retains the existing SOI boundaries  

 
• An alternative compromise that considers aspects of both LAFCo staff’s and Nevada 

City staff’s recommendations 
 
The compromise alternative was the result of productive discussions between City and 
LAFCo staff in defining the scope of environmental review for the SOI update. The 
compromise boundary achieves many of the City’s objectives in retaining important areas in 
the sphere.  In addition, it will provide environmental analysis for desired annexations, at a 
nominal cost to the City.  LAFCo has indicated that it is willing to include this compromise 
alternative (including environmental analysis to support the annexations) in the 
environmental analysis so long as the City is supportive of the “intent to annex,” along with 
the requested financial contribution.  LAFCo is expected to consider the recommendation 
on the appropriate level of environmental review at their next meeting, tentatively scheduled 
for Thursday, March 22, 2018. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 LAFCo Staff’s distributed  RFP with attached  alternative SOI Maps  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
January 16, 2018 

 

TO:  Interested Parties 

FR:  SR Jones, LAFCo Executive Officer 

RE:   Request for Proposals – Nevada City Sphere of Influence 
Update Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
The Nevada Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is seeking proposals 
from experienced consultants to prepare an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
to review the update of the sphere of influence plan for the City of Nevada City. 

The EIR will provide information for the Sphere of Influence Update for the city, 
including the potential environmental impacts of each alternative sphere of 
influence boundary (these would constitute the project alternatives as outlined in 
the enclosed RFP). 

LAFCo is seeking consultants with experience in the areas of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), preparation of CEQA documents, including 
EIRs, and a general knowledge of LAFCo Law (the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg 
Act).  

A detailed Request for Proposal and Scope of Services submission requirements, 
selection process, and a tentative schedule are available on the Nevada LAFCo 
website at www.mynevadacounty.com/907, or at 950 Maidu Avenue, Suite 270, 
Nevada City.  Relevant informational documents including General Plans and 
LAFCo policies, have been posted to a Dropbox account and interested applicants 
should contact LAFCo staff to receive a link. 

The deadline for submitting proposals is Friday, February 9, 2018. 
Feel free to contact us at 530.265.7180 if you have any questions or if you would 
like to attain additional information. 

 

L A F C o  
9 5 0  M a i d u  A v e n u e  

N e v a d a  C i t y ,  C A   9 5 9 5 9  
Phone:  530-265-7180 

E mail   lafco@co.nevada.ca.us 
https://www.mynevadacounty.com/907 

N e v a d a  C o u n t y  
L o c a l  
A g e n c y  
F o r m a t i o n  
C o m m i s s i o n  

 
 
Richard Anderson 
County 
 
Patrick Flora 
Cities 
 
Kurt Grundel, Vice-Chair 
Districts 
 
Evans Phelps 
Cities 
 
Josh Susman 
Public 
 
Hank Weston, Chair 
County 
 
Nick Wilcox 
Districts 
 
 
 
Ben Aguilar 
Cities Alternate 
 
Ed Beckenbach 
Districts Alternate 
 
Gloria Glenn 
Public Alternate 
 
Dan Miller 
County Alternate 
 
 
 
SR Jones 
Executive Officer 
 
P. Scott Browne 
Legal Counsel 
 
Deborah Gilcrest 
Clerk/Analyst 
 
Marianna Brewer 
Administrative Accountant 
 

http://www.mynevadacounty.com/907,
mailto:lafco@co.nevada.ca.us


LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
OF NEVADA COUNTY 

 
Request for Proposals for 

Environmental Review for Sphere Plan Review/Update 

1. INTRODUCTION 
The Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission (Nevada LAFCo) is seeking 
proposals from qualified planning and environmental consulting firms for the preparation of an 
environmental impact report and associated documents for the Sphere of Influence Plan Update 
for the City of Nevada City.    

Proposals should reflect a firm's ability to prepare the necessary environmental documentation to 
analyze the environmental impacts of the proposed project as well as possible alternatives.  
Proposals must be submitted to Nevada LAFCo, 950 Maidu Ave., Nevada City, California 
95959. Proposals must be submitted by February 9, 2018 to be considered. 

2. SUBJECT AGENCY 
LAFCo is updating the sphere of influence of the City of Nevada City.  Nevada City is a town 
with a population of approximately 3,145 located in western Nevada County.  The City provides 
a full portfolio of municipal services, including treated water, public sewer, police, fire protection 
and recreation.  The City’s jurisdictional boundaries include approximately 1280 acres.  The 
current sphere of influence includes approximately 2900 acres.   

3. BACKGROUND 
A sphere of influence is defined as a plan for the probable physical boundary and service area of 
a local agency, as determined by the Local Agency Formation Commission. The Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 defines the purpose and intent of a 
sphere of influence as an important tool for "planning and shaping the logical and orderly 
development and coordination of local agencies so as to advantageously provide for the present 
and future needs of the county and its communities." Annexations to a city or district cannot be 
approved by LAFCo unless they are consistent with the agency's sphere of influence. Therefore, 
including property within the city’s sphere implies annexation within the timeframe of the sphere 
of influence plan. Nevada County LAFCo sphere of influence policy requires a sphere of 
influence plan to include a sphere map and phased annexation plan for the depicted territory 
defining the probable boundary of the agency's service area twenty years after adoption of the 
plan (the long-term horizon) and identifying a near-term horizon for lands likely to be annexed in 
the next five years. 

4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The selected consultant will prepare an EIR and associated documents which fully comply with 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the update of the 
Nevada City Sphere of Influence Plan. 

Adoption of a sphere of influence does not change existing land uses or designations, zoning 
regulations, or the jurisdictional boundary of the subject agency. However, territory included in 
the City’s sphere will be eligible to receive City services, including public sewer service, if the 
City submits an annexation proposal or application for extension of services to LAFCo and it is 
approved.  Availability of sewer service permits substantially increased intensity of development 
over what would be allowed with septic systems. Lands annexed to the City will be subject to the 
City’s land use authority and development requirements.   



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

2 
 

Thus, the environmental analysis will evaluate the environmental impacts that would likely result 
from development that would be supported by the extension of the City’s services into the 
territory included in the City’s sphere.  

As required by CEQA Guidelines § l5125(a), the baseline for the environmental analysis shall be 
the present physical environment and development within the area of the sphere recommended by 
LAFCo and within each alternative. The baseline is not the uses allowed under the existing 
County General Plan.  The EIR shall review at an appropriate level of analysis the direct and 
indirect environmental impacts associated with the potential extension of agency services to areas 
within the recommended sphere and each of the various alternatives. 

In developing such analysis, it may generally be assumed that the level of development facilitated 
by the extension of services will be consistent with that allowed under the City’s General Plan 
currently in effect. However, some consideration must be given to the potential for change in 
land use regulation to allow increased intensity of use given the City’s ability to provide sewer 
service to such properties and demand for additional housing in the county.  

The project is more of a program level EIR as opposed to a project EIR.  The level of analysis 
will therefore necessarily focus on the broad impacts of potential development, rather than site 
specific impacts.  

Specific Impact Analyses 

• With respect to impacts on traffic, the Nevada County Transportation Commission has 
developed a regional traffic model and capital improvement plan that can substantially 
assist in the analysis and mitigation of the traffic impacts of development of the sphere.  

• The EIR shall include a green house gas impact analysis, based on projected development 
of the sphere.  

• With respect to public services, LAFCo has fairly up to date Municipal Services Reviews 
for the City and City services which will assist in assessing the impacts on those services.   
However, with respect to water supply and service, that may need to be updated with 
more recent data.  

 

Where appropriate, the environmental analysis in the EIR prepared for the applicable general 
plan may be incorporated into the environmental document.   

5. SCOPE OF WORK 
5.1. General 

5.1.1. Nevada LAFCo has prepared an update to the Nevada City Sphere of Influence Plan, 
including a recommended sphere of influence map.  The recommended map 
(Exhibit 1) removes territory from the City’s previous sphere of influence map that is 
unlikely to require the City’s services within the timeframe of the sphere plan, by 
virtue of being already developed for uses that do not require City services or where 
the provision of City services would be infeasible.  The recommended map indicates a 
five-year horizon identifying territory expected to be annexed within five years as well 
as the twenty-year horizon.  The environmental document should include an 
alternatives analysis that reviews environmental impacts arising from adoption of this 
sphere of influence boundary. 

5.1.2. The City has indicated it would prefer to retain in its sphere all territory included in 
its current sphere of influence (as initially adopted in 1983 and updated in 2008). The 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

3 
 

territory the City would like to have included in its sphere is depicted on a map 
provided herein as Exhibit 2. The environmental document should include an 
alternatives analysis that reviews environmental impacts arising from adoption of this 
sphere of influence boundary. 

5.1.3. The City and LAFCo staff have developed a ‘consensus map’ that removes some 
territory from the City’s sphere and retains some of the lands recommended for 
removal pursuant to the original LAFCo staff recommendation. The environmental 
document must include an alternatives analysis that reviews environmental impacts 
arising from adoption of this larger sphere of influence.  Exhibit 3 depicts the 
consensus map.  The environmental document should include an alternatives analysis 
that reviews environmental impacts arising from adoption of this sphere of influence 
boundary.  Note that it also provides the location of four areas the City would initiate 
for annexation; the environmental impacts associated with annexation of these areas 
should be included in the EIR.   

5.1.4. The consultant is expected to work throughout the project in close consultation with 
the LAFCo Executive Officer and with the Commission's Legal Counsel and to 
perform work that is consistent with Nevada LAFCo policies and procedures and the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (also referred 
to as "LAFCo law"). The consultant is also expected to consult with City staff; 
participate in meetings with LAFCo and City staff, public groups, and other interested 
agencies or parties (see below for further details); and make written and/or oral 
presentations to the Commission. 

5.2. Major Tasks and Work Plan Components: The consultant will be responsible for providing 
all work, oversight, management and administration of the environmental document.  The 
consultant shall be responsible for all procedural steps, including proposed scheduling and 
timing to comply with CEQA legal requirements and for preparation of essential documents: 
e.g., Notice of Preparation, administrative draft environmental document, Notice of 
Availability, public review draft environmental document, Notice of Completion, final 
environmental document, Notice of Determination, Statement of Findings of Fact and 
Overriding Considerations, and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Measures. LAFCo will 
file all required notices. 

Proposals should reflect a firm's ability to prepare the environmental documentation 
necessary to analyze the environmental impacts of the update of each agency's sphere of 
influence, as well as possible alternatives. The analyses must satisfy the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), including the recently adopted requirements 
pertaining to determination and evaluation of potential greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. 

Each proposal should include a general statement demonstrating an understanding of the 
work as outlined and describing the general approach to be taken in accomplishing it. The 
statement should make evident the consultant's experience and qualifications required to 
perform the required analysis and should provide a "not-to-exceed" estimate of costs for 
CEQA analysis.  The project alternatives will include the following:    

• Original LAFCo Staff Recommendation:  The sphere of influence would 
include approximately 1,650 acres, as depicted in Exhibit 1. 

• City Recommendation:  The sphere of influence would include the lands 
contained within the 2008 sphere of influence, as depicted in Exhibit 2. 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

4 
 

• LAFCo/City Consensus Alternative:  A map denoting the consensus boundary 
of the sphere of influence is provided in Exhibit 3.  This alternative would also 
include the initiation of four specific annexations following the completion of 
the EIR; the EIR should provide analysis sufficient to support the City’s 
prezoning and annexation of these four areas.  This variation is to be 
considered the Preferred Alternative for the purposes of the EIR. 

• No Project Alternative:  This alternative includes adoption of a coterminous 
sphere of influence, meaning the City’s sphere includes only the territory within 
the City’s jurisdictional boundary, as depicted in Exhibit 4.   

5.2.1. The consultant shall prepare the following work program components; all work 
products of consultant and all subconsultants shall be the property of Nevada LAFCo. 

5.2.2. In consultation with LAFCo staff and Legal Counsel, review LAFCo's Sphere Plan 
Update, relevant City studies and plans, as well as other applicable regional data, and 
prepare a technical memorandum outlining the EIR approach and analysis assumptions 
for purposes of framing the environmental review. These assumptions shall be consistent 
with the overall project description above. 

5.2.3. Work closely with LAFCo and City staff, including attending meetings, to identify 
pertinent information and studies, either by the consultant or consultant's subcontractors 
that should be used and incorporated into the scope of the Draft EIR. 

5.2.4. In consultation with LAFCo staff and Legal Counsel, 

• Prepare and submit to LAFCo staff for review the Notice of Preparation; 

• Circulate the NOP to all responsible and interested agencies and to the OPR for 
a 30-day comment period; 

• If LAFCo determines that a public scoping meeting is needed, conduct the 
meeting(please provide a separate cost proposal for this step); 

• Meet with City staff; 

• Review all comments received in response to the NOP and the scoping meeting 
(if held); and 

• Develop the scope and contents of the EIR. 

5.2.5. Undertake, either directly or by contracting with subcontractors, all specific and 
technical studies determined to be necessary to prepare a Draft EIR in full compliance 
with CEQA. 

5.2.6. Review the environmental impacts associated with the proposed sphere update with 
LAFCo and City staff; recommend feasible measures that should be applied to mitigate 
project impacts to a less than significant level; and identify significant impacts that 
cannot be mitigated. NOTE: LAFCo has very limited administrative or regulatory 
authority that would enable it to implement mitigation measures directly. You will need 
to work closely with LAFCo staff on development of proposed mitigation measures to 
insure that they can be implemented. 

5.2.7. Provide two (2) hard copies and an electronic copy (in MS Word format) of the 
Administrative Draft to LAFCo staff for review and comment. LAFCo staff will forward 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

5 
 

copies of the Administrative Draft to City staff and LAFCo Legal Counsel for review and 
comment, which will be expected to take two weeks. 

5.2.8. Incorporate all comments on the Administrative Draft into the Public Review Draft 
(DEIR). 

5.2.9. Coordinate with LAFCo staff regarding distribution of the DEIR and any technical 
appendices, providing to LAFCo staff electronic copies in both MS Word and Adobe 
PDF formats, of the DEIR and all technical appendices. The PDF version shall be 
provided as both a complete, integrated document and in separate chapters or sections. 

5.2.10. Prepare and submit to LAFCo staff: 

• The Notice of Availability (NOA). LAFCo will publish the NOA and will file it 
with the County Clerk. 

• The Notice of Completion (NOC). LAFCo will file the NOC with the OPR, 
along with the NOA and 15 printed copies of the DEIR. 

5.2.11. Present the DEIR analysis at a minimum of two meetings: 

• Before the City Council, and 

• Before the Nevada LAFCo Commissioners 

The consultant's proposal should indicate a specific fee to be charged for attendance at 
any additional meetings considered necessary by LAFCo staff. 

5.2.12. Review the oral testimony and written comments received during circulation of the 
DEIR with LAFCo staff and Legal Counsel and determine appropriate responses. 

5.2.13. In consultation with LAFCo staff and Legal Counsel, prepare a final EIR including 
appropriate responses to comments, both written and oral, and if appropriate, a Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP). 

5.2.14. Coordinate with LAFCo staff regarding distribution of the final EIR and all technical 
appendices; provide LAFCo with electronic versions of the final EIR and all appendices 
in both MS Word and PDF formats. 

5.2.15. Consultant shall work with LAFCo staff and shall be responsible to insure that the 
documents required by CEQA to be made available to the public during the preparation 
of the environmental document are made available. Those requirements are set forth in 
Pub. Res. Code§§ 21061, 21081.6(a) (2), 21092(b) (l), and 21152, CEQA Guidelines 
§§15130, 15087, 15148, 1509l (e), 15094(b)(9), and 15208, and elsewhere in CEQA.  
Consultant shall also work with LAFCo to insure that the Record of Proceedings (ROP) 
for the project as set forth in PRC §21167.6 (e) is maintained and updated as the project 
proceeds so that the "whole record" is available for review by the decision-makers at the 
time the decision is made on the project, as required by Pub. Res. Code §§21064.5, 
21080(c)(l) and (2) and (D), 21082.2, and 21157.5 (b). 

5.2.16. Present the final EIR analysis for each agency's sphere of influence to Nevada 
LAFCo at up to two public hearings. 

5.2.17. Complete and provide to LAFCo the Department of Fish and Game (DFG) No Effect 
Determination form; LAFCo will transmit the request for approval to the DFG. 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

6 
 

5.2.18. Prepare proposed final adoption documentation (e.g., Findings required by CEQA 
Guidelines§ 15091and15092 and Statement of Overriding Considerations) if necessary 
and provide an administrative draft to LAFCo staff and Legal Counsel for review and 
comment. Prepare a final set of documents based upon the comments of LAFCo staff and 
Legal Counsel. 

5.2.19. If necessary, modify the final EIR based on certification by LAFCo and provide 
electronic copies of the final documents, including the findings of fact and overriding 
considerations, MMRP, and all appendices in MS Word and PDF formats 

5.2.20. Prepare and submit to LAFCo the Notice of Determination; LAFCo staff will file the 
NOD with the county Clerk/Recorder. 

5.3. Obtaining Information and Relevant Data: The consultant will take the lead in gathering data 
and relevant environmental documents, plans, and/or studies available from public agencies.  
LAFCo staff will serve as a resource and liaison for locating information and providing 
contacts and obtaining other source materials. In preparing the proposal, background 
documents and reports are available for review via “Dropbox;” a link will be provided by 
LAFCo staff upon request.   

5.4. Mapping: Nevada LAFCo utilizes Nevada County's GIS (Geographic Information System) 
Department for mapping and will work with the County to make applicable GIS base layers 
(parcels, roads, hydrology, General Plan and zoning designations) available to the 
consultant.  The consultant will be responsible for preparing all maps for inclusion in the 
draft and final EIR and for providing the data to LAFCo in a GIS-based format for inclusion 
in the County's GIS. 

5.5. Meetings:  LAFCo is the primary contact for the consultant and is responsible for scheduling 
any public meetings that the consultants are expected to attend. The proposal should 
consider attendance at all meetings with LAFCo and agency staff, one meeting with each 
agency's Board of Directors, and up to four public hearings (two for each agency sphere) for 
presentations to the Nevada LAFCo Commissioners. A separate cost item should be 
included for one public scoping meeting if considered necessary by LAFCo staff.  Any 
additional meetings requested by LAFCo staff or Legal Counsel may be charged on a time 
and materials basis if approved in advance. 

5.6. Detailed Work Plan and Schedule: Prior to beginning work on the project, the consultant is 
required to prepare and submit, for approval by the LAFCo Executive Officer, a detailed 
work plan and time schedule for completion of the project. The plan and schedule should 
define the tasks associated with the project and identify appropriate progress benchmarks 
and deliverables to measure work performance.  It is expected that the consultant will utilize 
existing documents and completed studies where appropriate (as noted above) to obtain data 
for inclusion in the proposed EIR. The existing documents can also be referenced in the 
proposed EIR. The use of such resources is expected to significantly reduce the amount of 
time it would normally take the consultant to prepare an EIR. The consultant's work plan and 
schedule should take into account the availability and use of existing information. 

6. WIDER CONTEXT 
6.1. Prior Regulatory and Environmental Review History 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

7 
 

LAFCo adopted the original sphere of influence for Nevada City in 1983. Nevada City’s 
present boundaries include approximately 1280 acres in 1761 parcels. The current sphere of 
influence includes approximately 2900 acres in 950 parcels.   

The 1983 sphere of influence was adopted with a finding of exemption to CEQA.  In 2008, 
the sphere plan was reviewed and updated, but the Commission did not modify the sphere 
boundary. Because there was no change in the sphere boundary, the environmental review 
was limited and the Commission adopted a Negative Declaration. Consequently, there has 
not been any substantial environmental review done of the City sphere plan itself prior to the 
current project.  

The City’s current General Plan was updated in 1986.  The EIR for the City’s General Plan 
Update was prepared and certified in 1985.  In 2009, the City updated the General Plan Land 
Use Element; the Housing Element was last updated in 2014; no environmental review was 
conducted as the City found the project exempt from CEQA.   

Nevada County’s General Plan was comprehensively updated in 1996 with a full EIR; since 
that time, the County has updated the Safety Element (2008) and the Circulation Element and 
the Housing Element (2010).  In 2014, the County updated the Land Use Element and the 
Housing Element, and also adopted amendments to the Safety and Noise Elements.  These 
were done following preparation of a Mitigated Negative Declaration.    

Given the age and limitations of the existing general plan EIR’s, their usefulness in assessing 
the environmental impacts within the proposed sphere may be limited.  

6.2.  Relevant Plans and Policies 

The County General Plan includes goals and policies designed to promote coordination 
between City and County land use designations in lands included within a city’s sphere of 
influence.  These policies also encourage city annexation of lands proposed for development 
within city spheres of influence. (Goal 1.8, Policies 1.8.1 – 1.8.11) 

Nevada LAFCo’s policies on spheres of influence are set forth in Chapter III of the 
Commission’s Policies.  The Policies provide broad guidance relative to determination of 
appropriate sphere of influence boundaries and also provide for the Commission to designate 
“Areas of Interest” beyond an agency’s sphere of influence where the land use or other 
decisions of the land use agency may have impacts on another local agency.   

The relevant portions of the County General Plan, City General Plan and LAFCo policies 
should be considered in discussing the regulatory context of the project.  

LAFCo staff initially recommended a reduction to the City’s sphere of influence in 
consideration of Commission sphere policies barring inclusion of lands that are unlikely to 
require the agency’s services within the timeframe of the sphere plan. The lands 
recommended for exclusion included approximately 1160 acres in 513 parcels, of which 930 
acres in 430 parcels are improved. Staff’s recommendation would provide for an “Area of 
Interest” that would include all the lands omitted from the City’s sphere.  A map depicting 
this option is included in this RFP as Exhibit 1.   

The City opposed the LAFCo staff recommendation, pointing out that the County’s General 
Plan policies relative to coordination of land uses within a city’s sphere of influence provided 
the City with land use control over the sphere lands.  Thus, removing lands from the sphere 
would eliminate the City’s ability to control land use within the omitted areas.  The City has 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

8 
 

also prepared an ‘annexation plan’ describing how the City would annex and provide 
municipal services to the lands within the 2008 sphere, as depicted on Exhibit 2.   

LAFCo and City staff have jointly developed a consensus map that retains some of the lands 
proposed for removal.  The staff have agreed to include a provision in the sphere plan for the 
City to initiate annexation of four discrete areas, three of which contain parcels that are 
already connected to the City’s sewer system.  The EIR should include information adequate 
to support the City’s prezoning and annexation of these areas.  A map depicting this 
alternative is included herein as Exhibit 3.   

7. TENTATIVE SCHEDULE 
The consultant shall provide a proposed schedule for completion of the environmental 
documentation, keeping in mind the available environmental information provided in the 
environmental documents prepared for the General Plans of the two land use agencies (City of 
Nevada City and the County of Nevada). LAFCo would like as expeditious a schedule as 
reasonably possible without adversely impacting quality or increasing the cost of the project. 

8. PROPOSAL FORMAT 
A proposal that is timely received will be reviewed by LAFCo staff to determine if it is complete 
and addresses all of the following points: 

• A brief description of the consultant's firm and a statement of the firm's 
qualifications for performing the needed services, and those of any 
subcontractors intended to be used. 

• A summary of the firm's experience with similar projects. 

• A statement of the consultant's understanding of the proposed projects and of 
the environmental analysis necessary for sphere of influence updates. 

• A statement indicating the firm's approach to the project, including a description 
of the main tasks to be completed during the project and a time schedule 
reflecting the completion of each task and delivery of products. 

• A specific discussion of how the consultant intends to develop the GHG 
emissions analysis and proposed methodology to comply with CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15064.4. 

• An organization chart depicting the project team that will perform the work on 
each project and a brief summary of the qualifications and experience of each 
team member, including length of service with the firm, and resume. 

• A detailed cost proposal with subtotals for each of the major tasks identified in 
the proposal. Please include time allotments for all assigned employees and 
budgeted dollar amounts for each subcontractor as well as all other direct and 
indirect costs. Consultant participation in meetings and public hearings should 
be specifically identified. Hourly rates for participation in additional meetings 
should also be identified. 

• A list of references for lead staff and a brief description of similar projects he or 
she has conducted, including contact person and phone number. 

Please feel free to include any other information you feel is relevant to LAFCo's review and 
selection process. 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NEVADA COUNTY 
RFP for EIR for Nevada City Sphere Plan Review/Update 
 

9 
 

9. DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL 
Five hard copies and one electronic copy of the proposal shall be received no later than 
February 9, 2018 at the offices of Nevada LAFCo, 950 Maidu Avenue, Nevada City, California 
95959. 

10. SELECTION PROCEDURE 
All proposals that are timely submitted will be screened by a selection committee.  The 
recommended proposal will be considered by the LAFCo Commission before the contract is 
awarded.  Nevada LAFCo reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, waive any 
irregularity in the proposals, and/or to conduct further negotiations with any firm that has 
submitted a proposal. 

11. CONTRACT AND INSURANCE 
Nevada LAFCo uses a standard form of contract, a sample of which available upon request.  It 
incorporates standard insurance requirements, including provision of insurance certificates. 

Although the standard contract is subject to negotiated revision before execution by the parties, 
by submission of a proposal or statement of qualifications the potential consultant indicates that 
except as specifically and expressly noted in its submission, it has no objection to the standard 
LAFCo contract or any of its provisions, and if selected will enter into a final agreement based 
substantially upon that contract. 

12. CONTACT PERSON 
Direct all inquiries regarding the RFP process or proposal submissions to: 
SR Jones, Executive Officer 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Nevada County 
950 Maidu Avenue 
Nevada City, California 95959 
Phone: (530) 265-7180 
Email: SR.Jones@co.nevada.ca.us 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibits: 

1 Map depicting the original LAFCo staff recommendation 
2 Map depicting the 2008 sphere of influence 
3 Map depicting the consensus sphere boundary, including four annexation areas 
4 Map depicting a coterminous sphere of influence, for purposes of providing a “no project” alternative 

                                                 



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 2



ÃÃ20

ÃÃ49

Annexation Area #2

Annexation Area #2

Annexation Area #3

Annexation Area #4

Annexation Area #1

Area of Interest

Area of Interest

Area of Interest

Area of InterestArea of Interest

Exhibit 3



Deer Creek

Little Deer Creek

Gold Run

Bru
sh

Cr
ee

k

GoldRun
Mosquito

Creek

ÃÃ20

ÃÃ20

ÃÃ49

Red Dog Road

Boulder
Street

Gracie Road

North
Bloomfield-Graniteville

Roa
d

Willow Valley Road

Gold Flat Road

Cement Hill Road

Ridge Road

GRASS
VALLEY

NEVADA CITY

NEVADA CITY

Exhibit 4



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
FEBRUARY 28, 2018     www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Resolution Of Intent Of The City Of Nevada City To Annex Those 
Properties Already Served With City Sewer And Intervening Properties For 
Which City Services Are Readily Available: H.E.W. Property And Adjacent 
Properties; Cemetary Properties On Red Dog Road And Park Avenue 
Extension And Adjacent Properties; Caltrans Property And Adjacent 
Properties; And The Nevada County Juvenile Hall And Adjacent Properties 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 2018-XX of Intent to Annex those 
properties already served with City sewer and intervening/adjacent properties for 
which City services are readily available. 
 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The City is currently providing City sewer 
service to several properties outside city limits. The main line extension to these 
properties has the ability to provide service to several additional intervening 
properties. The City intends to ultimately annex its entire sphere of influence and 
these areas represent those that should be prioritized due to the current service 
or due to the readily accessible service:    
 

• Area 1 (five parcels):  Includes the California Department of 
Transportation facility (currently connected to City sewer), the 
Prospector’s Nursery, and the Little Friends Child Development Center, 
along Gold Flat Road.  

 
• Area 2 (three parcels): Includes County Juvenile Hall (currently connected 

to City sewer), and two adjacent and vacant County-owned properties, 
located south of Hwy 49.   

 
• Area 3 (18 parcels):  Includes the H.E.W. Building (privately owned and 

currently connected to City sewer) and the Nevada Cemetery District 
offices (also connected to City sewer) along Willow Valley Road.  There 
are 14 intervening parcels that are privately owned, two of which are 
undeveloped.   

 
• Area 4 (22 parcels):  Includes four cemetery facilities that are either 

privately or publicly managed along Boulder Street and Park Avenue 
Extension and 18 intervening properties. The City Engineer has indicated 
that this is an area of planned walkable improvements.  
 

The Local Area Formation Commission (LAFCo) staff is currently in the process 
of considering environmental review and preparing an appropriate environmental 
document pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for a 
revision to the Nevada City Sphere of Influence (SOI). This review will analyze 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


three alternative SOI boundaries, all of which encompass the properties 
referenced in the attached resolution indicating the City’s Intent to annex. All of 
these properties are either already served with City sewer or are situated in a 
manner that sewer service is readily available.  
 
RESOLUTION OF INTENT: If resolved to do so by the attached Resolution of 
Intent, Council will authorize staff to proceed with a pre-zone recommendation for 
the subject properties. After such time that the Planning Commission makes a 
recommendation, the City Council will ultimately determine pre-zoning for the 
subject properties. At that time the City Council may also act on a Resolution of 
Application to begin the annexation process with the Local Area Formation 
Commission (LAFCo) staff.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Staff anticipates that most of the 
environmental concerns regarding regarding the properties intended for 
annexation will be addressed in a LAFCo SOI Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) enabling city staff to tier off of the LAFCo EIR with a Notice of Exemption or 
minimal additional environmental review.  Passage of the Resolution of Intent is 
not considered a “project” under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). Environmental analysis will be considered with the pre-zoning. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no immediate fiscal impact with the adoption of a 
Resolution of Intent to Annex. However, the subsequent pre-zoning and 
annexation will require environmental review and staff time. As part of the EIR 
proposed for the SOI revision (estimated cost range up to $100,000), LAFCo 
staff have offered to analyze the impacts associated with annexing the four 
“intent to annex” areas referenced in the Resolution.  LAFCo staff have 
requested that the City pay $1,000 toward this environmental analysis.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Resolution 2018-XX: Resolution Of Intent To Annex Those Properties 

Already Served With City Sewer And/Or Water And Intervening Properties 
Whereby City Services Are Readily Available 

 Exhibit – Resolution 2018-XX Map 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-XX  
 

 RESOLUTION OF INTENT OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
TO ANNEX THOSE PROPERTIES ALREADY  

SERVED WITH CITY SEWER AND INTERVENING PROPERTIES  
FOR WHICH CITY SERVICES ARE READILY AVAILABLE: 

 H.E.W. PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES; 
CEMETARY PROPERTIES ON RED DOG ROAD AND  

PARK AVENUE EXTENSION AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES; 
CALTRANS PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES; AND 

 THE NEVADA COUNTY JUVENILE HALL AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES 
  

WHEREAS, that property referenced as “Area 1,” consisting of approximately 27 acres and 5 
parcels including: approximately 10 acres at 10057 Gold Flat Road, owned by the State of 
California and developed for their Department of Transportation  district facilities and already 
served by City sewer, and including approximately 7 acres of intervening/adjacent private 
property developed with the ‘Little Friends Child Development Center’ at  10114 Granholm 
Lane and developed with the ‘Prospector’s Nursery’ at 10003 Granholm Lane, for which city 
sewer service is readily available, and including approximately 10 acres of Caltrans right-of-
way; and  
 
WHEREAS, that property referenced as “Area 2,” consisting of approximately 44 acres and 3 
parcels including:  approximately 10 acres at 15434 State Highway 49 owned by the County 
of Nevada and developed with their Juvenile Hall facility for which the city currently provides 
sewer service, and including approximately 23 acres of adjacent vacant property owned by 
the County of Nevada for which sewer is readily available, and including approximately 1 
acre of Caltrans right-of-way; and  
 
WHEREAS, that property referenced as “Area 3,”  consisting of approximately 29 acres and 
18 parcels including: 12 acres of privately-owned  property (4.5 acres undeveloped and 7.5 
acres developed) at 10433 Willow Valley Road, commonly known as the H.E.W. property, 
currently vacant after public use thereof was discontinued in the late 1990s and already 
connected to the City sewer system; and including 2.4 acres of publicly managed cemetery 
district property, developed with district offices at 10523 Willow Valley Road for which sewer 
is readily available and including  approximately 14.6 acres of intervening private property, of 
which two parcels are undeveloped and for which City sewer is readily available, and  
 
WHEREAS, that property referenced as “Area 4,” consisting of approximately 29 acres and 
22 parcels, including 11 acres of privately and publicly managed cemetery facilitates at 
10563, 10546, and 10580 Red Dog Road, and including approximately 12 acres of 
intervening private property of which one parcel is vacant and for which the City intends to 
extend walkable improvements and for which city sewer is readily available; and  
 
WHEREAS, said properties are all within the Nevada City Sphere of Influence, attached as 
Exhibit A, and modified to reflect intended annexation areas 1 through 4  with all of the 
improved portions thereof being in the current annexation sphere, as approved by Nevada 
County LAFCo to promote logical and orderly development in Resolution No. 08-15 adopted 
October 8, 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Nevada City General Plan states it to be the City’s intention to ultimately 
include its entire sphere of influence within its boundaries and that each proposal for 



annexation will be judged individually on its physical, fiscal, and aesthetic compatibility with 
the goals and policies of the City of Nevada City; and; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council as the governing body of the City 
of Nevada City that it is the intent and desire of Nevada City to annex the properties that are 
currently being served by Nevada City sewer and/or water service, along with intervening 
properties into the City as soon as it is appropriate to file an application with LAFCo do so, in 
advance of or concurrent with consideration and processing of any project thereon. 

  
The City Manager is authorized to take all steps necessary to communicate this desire to 
LAFCo, the County of Nevada, and any subsequent purchaser, owner, or potential developer 
of the above properties to preserve and protect the interests of the City and to initiate 
annexation procedures when appropriate. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City held on 28th of 
February 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
   
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:        
 
 

           
 _________________________________ 

        Duane Strawser, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _________________________________ 
  Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Intent to Annex Areas 

Area 3 

Area 4 

Area 1 

Area 2 

Exhibit A (Resolution 2018-XX):  
Sphere of Influence Map modified  to reflect intended annexation areas 1 through 4 

Page 1of 2



Parcel Number Site Address Owner 

AREA 1 

35-230-33 10114 GRANHOLM LANE APPLEGATE E MARK TRSTE 

35-230-36 10266 GRANHOLM LANE CALIFORNIA STATE OF 

35-230-35 10057 GOLD FLAT ROAD CALIFORNIA STATE OF 

35-230-37 10310 GRANHOLM LANE CALIFORNIA STATE OF 

35-240-09 10003 GRANHOLM LANE WHITE DOUGLAS G & PAMELA S 

Area  2 

05-050-15 15434 STATE HIGHWAY 49 NEVADA COUNTY OF 

05-050-28 15380 KAHELE COURT NEVADA COUNTY OF 

05-050-32 15405 KAHELE COURT COUNTY OF NEVADA 

Area 3 

36-310-10 14612 HARTER PLACE KITCH DENNIS TRSTE ETAL 

36-310-11 14594 HARTER PLACE CISOWSKI JUDY A TRSTE 

36-310-10 14614 HARTER PLACE KITCH DENNIS TRSTE ETAL 

36-310-12 14597 HARTER PLACE ST JAMES BONNIE S 

36-310-08 10369 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD CAPPS TIMOTHY J 

36-310-36 10349 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD CASTO RANDALL G & KAREN L TRSTES 

36-310-58 14607 PEAR TREE LANE DOEHNE EDWARD F III & AUDREY TRSTES 

36-310-60 10399 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD COURTYARDS AT DEER CREEK LLC 

36-310-60 10433 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD COURTYARDS AT DEER CREEK LLC 

36-310-60 10523 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD COURTYARDS AT DEER CREEK LLC 

36-310-61 10523 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD NEVADA COUNTY CEMETERY DIST 

36-310-44 14700 HARTER PLACE ROBERTS FREDDIE L & SHEILA 

36-310-55 10317 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD KALBAUGH EDWARD J ETAL 

36-310-64 14663 PEAR TREE LANE BERTONCINI JANET 

36-310-39 10599 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD COURTYARDS AT DEER CREEK LLC 

36-310-56 14715 PEAR TREE LANE KOECKRITZ PAUL M & JUDIE T 

36-310-66 14648 PEAR TREE LANE BERTONCINI JANET 

36-310-12 14599 HARTER PLACE ST JAMES BONNIE S 

36-310-45 14648 HARTER PLACE HANF ADAM J & JAMIE R 

36-310-46 14649 HARTER PLACE BAKER STUART M TRSTE ETAL 

36-310-71 10285 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD AHRNS KAREN 

36-310-72 10297 WILLOW VALLEY ROAD MCGARR MICHAEL W & BEVERLY K TRSTES 

AREA 4 

36-330-09 10546 RED DOG ROAD SIERRA MEMORIAL LAWN A CORP 

36-360-12 11055 REEF POINT ETTLIN DANA J & MARY E TRSTES 

36-360-13 10246 PARK AVENUE EXTENSION JACOBS EDWARD G & GEORGIA L ETAL 

36-360-14 10296 PARK AVENUE EXTENSION MENDOZA BEATRICE T TRSTE 

36-360-15 10314 PARK AVENUE EXTENSION MAY ROBERT L TRSTE 

36-360-03 10407 REEF POINT JONES WALTER H & NANCY K TRSTES 

36-360-07 10455 BOULDER STREET WALSH LAWRENCE M 

36-360-10 10465 BOULDER STREET HJORD LENNART & INGEGERD 

36-330-10 10585 BOULDER STREET EGAN CONOR 

36-330-11 10577 BOULDER STREET DE GIORGIS JANE TRSTE 

36-330-13 10580 RED DOG ROAD NEVADA CEMETERY DISTRICT 

36-360-08 10491 BOULDER STREET SCHNEIDER CHRISTOPHER S TRSTE ETAL 

36-360-11 11045 REEF POINT HOFLAND KARIN 

36-360-23 10523 BOULDER STREET SELF NEDRA J TRSTE 

36-360-16 10338 PARK AVENUE EXTENSION JOHNSON RICHARD B & KAY K 

36-360-22 10519 BOULDER STREET MOODY DEBRA L TRSTE 

36-360-24 10529 BOULDER STREET MOODY DEBRA L TRSTE 

36-360-03 10409 REEF POINT JONES WALTER H & NANCY K TRSTES 

36-360-04 10417 BOULDER STREET CRADDOCK JOYCE 

36-360-05 10433 BOULDER STREET DEJESUS RYAN & NATALIE ETAL 

36-360-06 10443 BOULDER STREET LEEVER BRENT & DONNA 

36-360-26 10563 RED DOG ROAD NEVADA LODGE #13 F + AM 

36-360-25 10563 RED DOG ROAD SIERRA MEMORIAL LAWN 

Exhibit A (Resolution 2018-XX): 
List of Properties in intended annexation areas 1 through 4 

Page 2of 2



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 

         Nevada City, CA  95959 
February 28, 2018      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
 
TITLE:   Nevada City Three-Year Goals And Six-Month Strategic Objectives 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve City of Nevada City three-year goals and 
six-month strategic objectives. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
On February 7, 2018, the City Council, Planning Commission, and executive staff held 
a planning retreat in the City Hall Council Chambers, facilitated by Marilyn M. Snider. 
The focus of the 2018 retreat included the identification of three-year goals for the 
organization and six-month strategic objectives.  
 
Prior to identifying draft goals, attendees participated in S.W.O.T (strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, threats) analysis, including the identification and 
celebration of 46 accomplishments since the August 2017 Strategic Planning Retreat.  
 
After considerable engagement and refinement by attendees, the resulting four draft 
three year goals were solidified, not in priority order: 

• Enhance and maintain City infrastructure and facilities; 
• Improve and manage fiscal stability and sustainability; 
• Reduce homelessness and transient population; and 
• Increase community awareness and involvement. 
 

The attendees then reviewed the above mentioned goals and developed 18 specific 
six month strategic objectives, specific performance measures, and a follow-up 
process to ensure progress is monitored.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

  
1. Strategic Planning Retreat Three-Year Goals and Notes 
2. Six-Month Strategic Objectives 



 1 

N E V A D A  C I T Y  
STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT 

February 7, 2018  *   Council Chambers 
 

Marilyn Snider, Facilitator -- Snider and Associates  (510) 531-2904 
Michelle Snider Luna, Recorder – Snider Education & Communication (510) 610-8242 

 
 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 

 
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town character  

 

and historical architecture while providing quality public services  
 

for our current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
 
 
 

VISION STATEMENT 
 

Nevada City, nestled in the Sierra foothills, will be a vibrant, uniquely beautiful small town  
 

that balances art and culture, historical preservation and progress. 
 
 
 
 
 

CORE VALUES 
n o t  i n  p r i o r i t y  o r d e r  

 
The City of Nevada City values… 

 A commitment to public service 

 Ethical and transparent behavior 

 Fiscal responsibility 

 Preserving and enhancing our community 

 Excellent, responsive customer service 

 A commitment to our community as a whole 
 
 
 

THREE-YEAR GOALS 
 2016-2019 * not in priori ty order 

 

  Enhance and maintain the infrastructure and facilities 

  Improve and manage fiscal stability and sustainability 

  Reduce homelessness and transient population 

  Increase community communication, awareness and involvement



 2 

 

S.W.O.T. ANALYSIS 
 

Strengths – Weaknesses - Opportunities - Threats 
 
 
WHAT ARE THE STRENGTHS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
SINCE THE AUGUST 2017 STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT? 
Brainstormed Perceptions 

• Youth Connect Program with the school district 
• Swimming pool got repaired 
• National Hotel has a prospective new owner 
• Expanded our Hotel Incentive Program 
• We got a cannabis dispensary approved 
• Put a roof on the South Yuba Canal building 
• We got a new City Manager 
• Kept a winter warming shelter facility for the homeless 
• Completed CABY grant for water lines—approximately $1.5 million 
• Remodeled the internal portion of the Police Department 
• Wastewater plant has an updated chlorine gas and sulfur sensor system with a full alarm 
• Adopted a conceptual route for Sugar Loaf Trail 
• Finished the design of refurbishing the bathrooms in Pioneer Park 
• Recovered from last year’s storm damage 
• Had our first public meeting for the master plan for the Old Airport Property 
• Made a resolution to become 100% renewable by 2050 
• Adopted a social media policy 
• Added additional Park Eazy parking spaces 
• Stabilized staffing in the Police Department 
• New trash cans and recycling receptacles 
• Purchased the private residence in the middle of Pioneer Park 
• Got the first round of the Aaron and Ellen Clark Sergeant statue 
• Finished environmental on the Nevada Street Bridge Replacement Project 
• Moving forward on lower Commercial Street remodel 
• Improved our Police Department Property Room 
• Launched the Volunteer Nevada City website 
• We adopted a volunteer policy 
• Did some testing to check on possible lead in water and gave the residents good results at 

Chief Kelly Co-Housing 
• Increased community involvement (e.g., Pioneer Park Community Watch) 
• National Night Out with all regional law enforcement 
• Continued adding reserves to the Genera Fund through Measure L 
• Two cannabis manufacturing authorizations 
• Leased the Zion Street Yard—provided rental space and kept an existing business 
• Completed a qualified opinion on the audit 
• Nevada City/Grass Valley/Truckee have established with the State of California an official 

Cultural Arts District—we’re the only rural district 
• Annexation of Sugar Loaf 
• City banner system has been installed  



 3 

• Updated over 2000 feet of collection system 
• Finished the Little Deer Creek Phase I restoration 
• Reroofed Seaman’s Lodge 
• We finished the design for underground utility lines for the upper part of Broad Street 
• Secured funding from SB1 (transportation) for $270,000 
• Finished the design of new sidewalk from Sacramento Street to Pioneer Park 
• We spent $500,000 of Measure S funding on repair of streets and sidewalks 
• City-wide cleanup in Fall 
• Approved bus service from Nevada City to the Yuba River 

 
 

WHAT ARE THE CITY’S CURRENT INTERNAL WEAKNESSES/CHALLENGES? 
Brainstormed Perceptions 

• Challenge of fully staffing and turnover for Water, Wastewater and Public Works 
• Limited staffing 
• Lack of clarity on how to ensure historic preservation 
• Limited affordable housing 
• Lack of competitive salaries and benefits 
• Lack of funding for public utilities and infrastructure 
• Lack of response time at Public Works 
• Down staffing in Police Department because of injuries 
• Old, outdated public restrooms throughout the city 
• Fragmented views and direction on the homeless issue 
• Lack of AirBnB enforcement 
• Lack of smoking ordinance enforcement 
• Not keeping dirty sidewalks clean 
• Cannabis is taking too much time 
• Unused commercial space 
• Outdated software systems 
• Lack of a code enforcement officer 
• Insufficient funding 
• Lack of telecom ordinance 
• Limited high speed internet 
• Outdated and poorly maintained City Hall bathrooms and roof 
• Lack of definition of roles 
• Lack of public murals 
• Lack of code enforcement 
• Complaints that it is too hard to get businesses going 

 
 



 4 

WHAT ARE THE EXTERNAL FACTORS/TRENDS THAT WILL/MIGHT HAVE A POSITIVE 
IMPACT ON THE CITY IN THE COMING YEAR? 
Brainstormed Perceptions 

• City’s architecture is a draw for people to come here 
• Stone House is open 
• Legalization of marijuana may reduce migrant cannabis workers 
• Potential of increased tax revenue from sale of medical marijuana 
• State grants 
• Documentary about Nevada City (“Redefining Prosperity”) 
• Yuba River 
• Yuba Bus 
• Refurbishment of the National Hotel 
• Nevada City Farmers Market is getting larger 
• A lot of people putting money into historical building preservation 
• Wild & Scenic Film Festival and Nevada City Film Festival 
• Sugar Loaf Trail—draw of a new trail in town 
• Governor’s veto of SB649—small cells bill 
• Continued increase in assessed property valuations 
• Economy is good—people are spending more money 
• Legalization of marijuana helping to give us a guideline of what we can do 
• Increase in taxable businesses in light industry zone 
• Cultural Arts District—State funded and a regional draw 
• Continued presence of Nevada City on Top 10 lists 
• The past holiday season was one of the best in the city—the town was packed 

 
 
WHAT ARE THE EXTERNAL FACTORS/TRENDS THAT WILL/MIGHT HAVE A NEGATIVE 
IMPACT ON THE CITY IN THE COMING YEAR? 
Brainstormed Perceptions 

• Not enough snowpack 
• Fire 
• People leaving the city—some cannot afford to live here 
• Increase in homelessness 
• Lack of mental health support 
• Opioid addiction 
• ICE threats to workers 
• Tourism decline 
• Tree mortality 
• Potential crime related to cannabis 
• NIMBYism (not in my backyard) 
• Inaccurate news reporting 
• Disrespect of public bathrooms 
• Loss of revenues due to businesses leaving 
• Lack of housing stock 
• Pyromaniac homeless individuals 
• Trimmers 
• Aggressive telecom speculation 
• Aging population 



 5 

• County and adjacent cities aren’t doing anything about cannabis—putting all the pressure on 
us 

• Lack of funds from DC and Sacramento 
• Current Federal policy and perspective 
• Nuclear holocaust 
• Stock market availability 
• War 
• Climate change 
• Environmental impacts of cannabis (e.g., runoff) 
• Income inequality 
• Stress on retirement system and medical system 
• Possible dark drug money coming in 
• CAVE people (citizens against virtually everything)  



 6 

NEXT STEPS/FOLLOW-UP PROCESS 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
 
February 7, 2018 

 
Admin Services 
Manager 
 

 
Place the “Strengths,” on the City’s website. 
 

 
February 8, 2018 

 
City Manager 

 
Send the Strategic Plan to invitees unable to attend or 
who had to leave early. 
 

 
Within 24 hours of 
receipt 
 

 
All 

 
Read the Strategic Planning Retreat record. 
 

 
February 20, 2018 

 
City Manager and 
Management Team 
 

 
Review “Current Weaknesses” list for possible action 
items. 

 
By February 21, 2018 

 
City Manager and 
Management Team 
 

 
Share and discuss the updated Strategic Plan with staff 
face-to-face. 

 
February 28, 2018 City 
Council meeting 
 

 
City Council 

 
Present the draft Strategic Plan to the public and formally 
adopt it. 
 

 
Monthly 
 

 
Management Team and 
City Council 

  
Monitor progress on the strategic planning goals and 
objectives and revise objectives (add, amend and/or 
delete), as needed. 
 

 
Monthly 

 
City Manager & Admin 
Services Manager 

 
Prepare and distribute to the City Council, Planning 
Commission, Management Team and staff, and post on 
the website, the updated Strategic Plan Monitoring 
Matrix. 
 

 
August 17, 2018 
8:00/8:30-3:30 

 
City Council, 
Planning Commission 
& 
Management Team 
 

 
Strategic Planning Retreat to: 
- more thoroughly assess progress on the Goals  
and Strategic Objectives 
- develop new 6-Month Strategic Objectives for each of 
the Three-Year Goals. 
 

 
 
 
 



 7 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN ELEMENTS 

Marilyn Snider, Strategic Planning Facilitator  - Snider and Associates – (510) 532-2904 
 
 

“SWOT” ANALYSIS 
Assess the organization’s:  

- Internal Strengths        - Internal Weaknesses 
- External Opportunities        - External Threats 

 
 

MISSION/PURPOSE STATEMENT 
States WHY the organization exists and WHOM it serves 

 
 

VISION STATEMENT 
A vivid, descriptive image of the future—what the organization will BECOME 

 
 

CORE VALUES 
What the organization values, recognizes and rewards—strongly held beliefs that are freely chosen, publicly 

affirmed, and acted upon with consistency and repetition 
 

 
THREE YEAR GOALS 

WHAT the organization needs to accomplish (consistent with the Mission and 
moving the organization towards its Vision) – usually limited to 4 or 5 key areas 

 
 

THREE YEAR KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
WHAT success will look like when the goal is achieved 

 
 

SIX MONTH STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
HOW the Goals will be addressed: By when, who is accountable to do what  

for each of the Goals 
 

 
FOLLOW-UP PROCESS 

Regular, timely monitoring of progress on the goals and objectives; includes 
setting new objectives every six months 

 
 



 A 

N E V A D A  C I T Y  
SIX-MONTH STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

F e b r u a r y  7 ,  2 0 1 8  –  A u g u s t  1 ,  2 0 1 8  
 
 
 

 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Enhance and maintain the infrastructure and facilities 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
By May 1, 2018 

 
City Engineer and 
Councilmember Reinette 
Senum 

 
Identify and present to the City Council for direction and to 
the public for input, options for one-way or closed streets 
for downtown. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2. 
By June 1, 2018 

 
City Engineer (lead), Public 
Works Superintendent and 
City Manager 

 
Provide to the City Council for consideration 
recommendations for funding, including a possible 
Measure S amendment, to include water/sewer 
collection/distribution improvements. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3. 
By June 1, 2018 

 
City Engineer and Mayor 
Duane Strawser 

 
Develop and present to the City Council for consideration 
schematic plans for Spring Street/National Alley parking, 
with pedestrian connections and right-of-ways. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4. 
By August 1, 
2018 

 
City Engineer, working with 
Water Treatment staff 

 
Present a procurement proposal to BLM for their property 
for the Water Plant and surrounding property. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5. 
By August 1, 
2018 

 
Mayor and City Engineer, 
working with CalTrans 

 
Present to the City Council for action a plan to change the 
existing aluminum rails on Nevada City bridges to a more 
compatible historic theme. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 B 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Improve and manage fiscal stability and sustainability 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
By March 15, 2018 

 
City Attorney (lead), City 
Manager and City Planner  

 
Present a proposal to the City Council for consideration 
for refinement/slowing down the cannabis business 
application process to be more efficient and for better 
utilization of staff and funding resources. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2. 
By April 15, 2018 

 
City Manager (lead), Admin 
Services Manager, 
Accountant, Customer 
Service Rep, working with 
staff and MGT consultant 

 
Update the City’s A87 Cost Allocation Plan (direct and 
indirect City costs) and present to the City Council during 
the budget process. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3. 
By May 15, 2018 

 
City Manager and Admin 
Services Manager 

 
Complete a Wastewater Rate Study and bring to City 
Council for consideration an updated 5-Year Rate 
Schedule. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4. 
By June 1, 2018 

 
Admin Services Manager 
(lead), City Manager and 
City Engineer 

 
Complete a RFP and bring a contract to the City Council 
for a consultant to complete the AB1600 Study regarding 
impact fees. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5. 
By June 15, 2018 

 
City Manager (lead), Admin 
Services Manager and 
Councilmember Valerie 
Moberg 

 
Identify non-compliant AIrBnBs and identify methods of 
better TOT collection. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6. 
By June 15, 2018 

 
City Planner (lead), City 
Manager and Admin 
Services Manager 

 
Assess cannabis business costs and permitting 
processes to determine appropriate fees and the permit 
renewal process. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 C 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Reduce homelessness and transient population 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
By April 1, 2018 

 
Mayor Duane Strawser, 
Police Chief and City 
Manager, working with 
Brendan Phillips of County 
Social Services, the County 
Court System, Local Police 
Agencies and the DA’s Office 
 

 
Develop collaborative strategies to reduce homelessness. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2. 
At the May 23, 
2018 Council 
meeting 

 
Police Chief (lead), Mayor 
Duane Strawser and City 
Attorney 
 

 
Prepare ordinance amendments to elevate the penalties 
regarding quality of life violations to misdemeanors and 
present to the City Council for consideration. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3. 
At the July 25, 
2018 Council 
meeting 
 

 
City Planner (lead), City 
Attorney and Planning 
Commissioner Jason Rainey, 
with input from the Planning 
Commission 
 

 
Draft an ordinance that addresses incentives for 
developers and residents for affordable housing and 
present to the City Council for consideration. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 D 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Increase community communication, awareness and involvement 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 
   DONE ON 

TARGET 
REVISED  

1. 
Bimonthly (by the 
15th of the month 
prior to utility 
billings) 
 

 
Mayor and the 
Department Heads 

 
Provide written information about current/upcoming projects for 
inclusion in the Nevada City Newsletter. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2. 
By March 1, 2018 

 
Parks and Recreation 
Supervisor 

 
Distribute the Volunteer Coordinator job description to community 
groups (e.g., Chamber of Commerce, Service Clubs) to assist in 
recruiting. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3. 
At the May 9, 
2018 Council 
meeting 

 
City Manager and 
Parks and Recreation 
Supervisor 

 
Report to the City Council the guidelines for use of the City social 
media accounts by staff. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4. 
By July 1, 2019 

 
City Manager (lead), 
Admin Services 
Manager, Parks and 
Recreation Supervisor 
and consultant Jesse 
Lockes 

 
Create City social media accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 








	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - 02.28.18
	WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2018
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	2A-1 Thomas A. Coleman Proclamation
	3A-1 SR - Notice of Completion - Measure S Paving 2017
	3A-2 RESO 2018-XX - Notice of Completion Measure S Paving 2017
	3A-3 NOTICE OF COMPLETION - Measure S Paving 2018
	Sheet1

	3B-1 SR - Notice of Completion - Chamber Roof
	3B-2 RESO 2018-XX - Notice of Completion Chamber Roof
	3B-3 NOTICE OF COMPLETION - Chamber Roof
	Sheet1

	3C-1SR - Award Contract Change Order for  Sewer Repairs at West Broad
	3C-2 Contract Change Order for Sewer Repairs at West Broad
	3C-3 RESO 2018-XX - Change Order Sewer Repairs West Broad
	4A-1 Minutes - February 7, 2018 - DRAFT
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	4B-1 Minutes - February 14, 2018 - DRAFT
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	Consulting City Attorney, Hal DeGraw reported out of Closed Session:
	4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES:

	5A-1 SR 02-28-18 1st Quarter Financials
	5A-2 1st Quarter Financial Reports FY 17-18
	7A-1 Cultivation Limitation SR
	7A-2Cultivation Limitation ATTACHMENT-ORD
	7B-1 SR 2-28-18 Sensitive Use Proximity
	7B-2 Attachment to SR Cannabis concentration location memo
	BACKGROUND:
	ANALYSIS:
	CONCLUSIONS:

	8A-1 SR - Vacation of National Alley
	8A-2 National Alley Proposal to Vacate 2.23.18
	8A-3 2018-0223 Site drawings for City Street Vacation meeting reduced file size
	8A-4 National Alley PERSPECTIVE 01 D
	8A-5 National Alley PERSPECTIVE 02 D
	8A-6 List of Streets Abandoned by City
	8B-1 LAFCo SOI Update SR-2-28-2018
	8B-2 LAFCo SOI Update ATTACHMENT-RFP Distribution
	RFP Cover NC Sphere.01.16.18
	RFP for 2018 EIR.01.16.18
	Exhibit 1 NC Sphere LAFCo Staff Recommendation
	Exhibit 2 NC Sphere 2008 Sphere
	Exhibit 3 NC Sphere Consensus
	Exhibit 4 NC Sphere Coterminous boundary

	8C-1 Intent to Annex SR 2-28-2018
	8C-2 Intent to Annex Attachment 1 RESO
	8C-3 Intent To Annex ATTACHMENT 2 (Reso Exhibit)
	8D-1 SR 2-28-18 Planning Retreat Goals
	8D-2 Nevada City  SP  2-18 Full Doc
	Michelle Snider Luna, Recorder – Snider Education & Communication (510) 610-8242
	MISSION STATEMENT
	VISION STATEMENT
	Enhance and maintain the infrastructure and facilities
	Improve and manage fiscal stability and sustainability
	Reduce homelessness and transient population
	Increase community communication, awareness and involvement
	S.W.O.T. ANALYSIS

	WHAT ARE THE STRENGTHS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY SINCE THE AUGUST 2017 STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT?

	WHAT ARE THE CITY’S CURRENT INTERNAL WEAKNESSES/CHALLENGES?
	STRATEGIC PLAN ELEMENTS

	WHAT
	WHO
	WHEN
	“SWOT” ANALYSIS
	MISSION/PURPOSE STATEMENT
	VISION STATEMENT
	CORE VALUES
	THREE YEAR GOALS

	THREE YEAR KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	WHAT success will look like when the goal is achieved
	SIX MONTH STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
	FOLLOW-UP PROCESS

	8D-3 Nevada City GRID 2-18
	WHEN
	WHO
	WHAT


	WHEN
	WHO
	WHAT


	WHEN
	WHO
	WHAT


	WHEN
	WHO
	WHAT



	9A-1 Narrow Guage Railroad Co. Letter
	9B-1 SYRCL - Thank you letter 1
	9B-2 SYRCL - Thank you letter 2



